
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 
3TN on THURSDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2006 at 11:30 AM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 
 
  

 APOLOGIES Contact 
(01480) 

  
1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 10th 
February 2006. 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or prejudicial 
interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any Agenda 
item. 
 
Please see notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

3. PRIMARY CARE TRUSTS   
 

 

 (a) COMMISIONING A PATIENT-LED NATIONAL HEALTH 
SERVICE CONSULTATION  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 

 

  To consider a report by the Chief Executive on the outcome of 
consultations on the future configuration of Primary Care Trusts, 
Strategic Health Authorities and Ambulance Trusts. 
 

D Monks 
388001 

 (b) CONSULTATION ON NEW PRIMARY CARE TRUST 
ARRANGEMENTS IN NORFOLK, SUFFOLK AND 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 

 

  To consider a report of the Older Persons Working Group 
 

A Roberts 
388009 

4. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT: GOVERNANCE  (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy to appoint a Member to the 
Local Area Agreement Board. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

5. LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS: SHAPING THEIR FUTURE  
(Pages 13 - 22) 

 

 

 To receive a report by the Head of Policy and to consider and comment 
upon a consultation paper issued by the Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 



 
 
6. MONITORING OF THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME - 2005/06  (Pages 

23 - 34) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services outlining 
spending variations for 2005/06. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT - INVESTMENT PEFORMANCE  
(Pages 35 - 38) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services on the 
performance of the Investment Fund, October to December 2005. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

8. HIGHWAYS AGENCY 2006  (Pages 39 - 42) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment and Transport on the 
development of a new agreement between the Council and the 
Highways Agency. 
 

R Preston 
388340 

9. CONCESSIONARY FARES  (Pages 43 - 48) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment and Transport on the 
implementation of a concessionary fares regime across the District. 
 
 

S Bell 
388387 

10. CAR PARKING ORDER - OAK DRIVE, HUNTINGDON  (Pages 49 - 
50) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment and Transport 
seeking approval for a new car parking order for the Oak Drive off-
street car park at Sapley Square, Huntingdon. 
 

C Allen 
388380 

11. SMALL SCALE ENVIRONMENT IMPROVEMENTS  (Pages 51 - 54) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment and Transport on 
progress of small scale environmental improvement schemes and 
outlining a programme of schemes for 2006/07. 
 
 

C Allen 
388380 

12. PLANNING  GAIN SUPPLEMENT:  A CONSULTATION  (Pages 55 - 
58) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager outlining the 
implications for the District Council of the Government’s proposals to 
introduce a new tax – the Planning Gain Supplement. 
 

R Probyn 
388401 

13. CONSULTATION ON PLANNING POLICY STATEMENTS  (Pages 59 
- 68) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager on recent 
consultation papers published by the Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister on Housing and Development and Flood Risk. 
 

R Probyn 
388430 



 
 
14. DEVELOPMENT BRIEF - OLD FIRE STATION SITE/HOUSEHOLD 

WASTE DISPOSAL SITE, ST NEOTS  (Pages 69 - 70) 
 

 

 To consider the development brief for the Old Fire Station and 
Household Waste disposal site at St. Neots and to approve it as a 
basis for further discussion and consultation. 
 
(A copy of the Development Brief is attached to the agenda 
separately). 
 
 

M Huntington 
388404 

15. THE DISABILITY EQUALITY SCHEME  (Pages 71 - 78) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy on a proposed draft 
Disability Equality Scheme for the Council. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

16. DELEGATED POWERS  (Pages 79 - 80) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environmental Health Services 
seeking approval to the delegation of enforcement powers under the 
Housing Act 1985. 
 

Mrs S Questier 
388286 

   
 Dated this 14 day of February 2006  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

 Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, a 
partner, relatives or close friends; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 



 
 

 

Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 01480 388008/e-
mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish 
to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any 
decision taken by the Cabinet. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer.  

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 
If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or 

would like a large text version or an audio version please contact the 
Democratic Services Manager and we will try to accommodate your needs. 

 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting Administrator, 
all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency exit and to make 

their way to the base of the flagpole in the car park at the front of Pathfinder House. 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Council 

Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
on Friday, 10 February 2006. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor L M Simpson – Vice Chairman in 

the Chair 
   
  Councillors Mrs J Chandler, A Hansard, 

D P Holley, Mrs P J Longford, T V Rogers 
and L M Simpson. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors I C Bates, 
N J Guyatt and Mrs D C Reynolds. 

   
   
 
 

163. MINUTES   
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 2nd February 2006 were approved 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

164. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 No declarations were received. 

 
165. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
because the business to be transacted contains exempt 
information relating to applicants to become employees of the 
authority and terms proposed for the acquisition and disposal 
of property and the supply of goods and services. 

 
166. COMMERCE AND TECHNOLOGY DIRECTORATE: 

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR   
 
 The Chairman reported on the outcome of the meeting of the 

Appointments Panel which had interviewed short-listed candidates for 
the post of Director of Commerce & Technology at a meeting held 
earlier that day. 
 
Having been acquainted with the requirements of paragraph 4(e) of 
the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Cabinet confirmed that 
there was no material or well-founded objection to the Panel’s 
proposals with regard to the offer of an appointment to fill the 
vacancy. 
 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



167. HEADQUARTERS AND OTHER ACCOMMODATION 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT   

 
 In conjunction with the report of the District Council’s Headquarters 

and Other Office Accommodation Members’ Advisory Group held on 
26th January 2006 (a copy of which is appended in the Annex to the 
Minute Book) and with the assistance of a report by the Chief Officers’ 
Management Team (a copy of which is also appended in the Annex to 
the Minute Book) the Cabinet were acquainted with progress on 
negotiations for the completion of a Development Agreement for the 
procurement of new headquarters and other accommodation for the 
District Council. 
 
Having considered the deliberations of the Office Accommodation 
Members’ Advisory Group & the Overview & Scrutiny Panels, the 
Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the recommendations of the Office Accommodation 
Members’ Advisory Group at their meeting held on 26th 
January 2006 be commended for approval by the Council at 
their meeting to be held on 22nd February 2006. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

2



 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SERVICE DELIVERY & RESOURCES)     7TH FEBRUARY 2006 
 
CABINET     23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 

COMMISSIONING A PATIENT-LED NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE: 
CONSULTATION 

(Report by the Chief Executive) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 In conjunction with the debate nationally on the future of the 

National Health Service (NHS) and following on from the 
consideration by Cabinet at its meeting held on 13th October 2005 of 
a report on proposals for the reconfiguration of Primary Care Trusts 
(PCTs) in the Eastern Region, Executive Councillors are now invited 
to consider formal proposals published by the Norfolk, Suffolk & 
Cambridgeshire Strategic Health Authority (SHA) for consultation. 

 
1.2 In addition to the proposals for PCTs, the SHA has published for 

consultation a proposal for a single SHA for the Eastern Region.  The 
SHA has also published a proposal for one Ambulance Trust in the 
Region. 

 
1.3 The following paragraphs summarise the proposals for all three 

branches of the NHS.  The closing date for the receipt of comments is 
22nd March 2006. 

 
2. PRIMARY CARE TRUSTS 
 
2.1 The earlier report to Cabinet outlined the background to the process 

for reconfiguring PCTs with a view to assessing proposals against 
their ability to — 

 
• secure high quality, safe services; 
• improve health and reduce inequalities; 
• improve the engagement of general practitioners and the roll-

out of practice-based commissioning with demonstrable 
practice support; 

• improve public involvement; 
• improve commissioning and the effective use of resources; 
• manage financial balance and risk; 
• improve coordination with Social Services through greater 

congruence of PCT and local government boundaries; and 
• deliver a reduction of at least 15% in management and 

administrative costs. 
 
2.2 In his foreword to the options for consultation and while drawing 

attention to the increased investment – from £33 billion in 1997/98 to 
over £90 billion planned for 2007/08 – in “transforming” hospitals by 
reducing waiting times/lists, in improving accident and emergency 

Agenda Item 3a

3



services and in updating buildings, Sir Nigel Crisp, Chief Executive to 
the Department of Health and NHS, has acknowledged the need for 
more to be done to deliver a service fit for the 21st Century. 

 
2.3 The emphasis to be placed on the commissioning role of PCTs is 

evident but, in similar vein, reference also is made to safety, quality 
and the responsiveness of services.  Essentially the consultation 
envisages PCTs in the future designing, planning and developing 
better services for patients, working more closely with local 
government and supporting good general practice.  In that context, 
PCTs are described as “custodians of the taxpayers’ money, working 
to ensure that the NHS gets the best value for the public purse”. 

 
2.4 The two options for the future configuration of PCTs in Norfolk, 

Suffolk & Cambridgeshire, on which the Secretary of State for Health 
has asked the SHA to undertake formal consultation, are as follows:- 

 
 Option 1 — 3 PCTs 
 

• Norfolk PCT 
• Suffolk PCT 
• Cambridgeshire PCT (including Peterborough) 

 
 Option 2 — 5 PCTs 
 

• Gt Yarmouth & Waveney PCT 
• Norfolk PCT (excluding Gt Yarmouth) 
• Suffolk PCT (excluding Waveney) 
• Peterborough PCT 
• Cambridgeshire PCT (excluding Peterborough). 

 
 (Note: Currently there are 17 PCTs in the three Counties and 41 in 

the Eastern Region.) 
 
2.5 After having considered the matter at its meeting held on 13th 

October 2005, Cabinet resolved — 
 
 “that the Chief Executive, in conjunction with the Leader of the 

Council, be authorised to make appropriate representations to the 
Norfolk, Suffolk & Cambridgeshire SHA for the inclusion in the 
forthcoming round of consultation of the option to retain the existing 
Huntingdonshire PCT in any future reconfiguration of Primary Care 
Trusts in the Eastern Region”. 

 
2.6 Representations subsequently were made to the SHA to include the 

option of a free-standing Huntingdonshire PCT in the options for 
consultation.  The representations were copied to Sir Nigel Crisp, to 
partner organisations and stakeholders and to a range of other 
sources believed to be supportive of the retention of a PCT for 
Huntingdonshire as the best option for Huntingdonshire residents.  
Clearly, however, these have failed to influence the deliberations thus 
far. 

 
2.7 The Huntingdonshire PCT has actively lobbied and canvassed support 

to retain its free-standing status.  In that respect, the PCT has 

4



produced a report, “Commissioning a Patient-Led NHS in 
Huntingdonshire”, which it has submitted to the Secretary of State for 
Health and copied widely elsewhere.  This can be viewed or 
downloaded from the Trust’s website at www.hunts-pct.nhs.uk. 

 
2.8 The Executive Councillor for Office Accommodation & Other Special 

Projects, Councillor D P Holley, has tabled the following Notice of 
Motion for consideration by full Council on 22nd February:- 

 
 “that, in the interests of the people of Huntingdonshire and true local 

accountability, the District Council wholeheartedly supports the 
retention of Huntingdonshire PCT as an independent Trust under the 
Strategic Health Authority area so as to maintain and enhance a 
patient-led NHS”. 

 
3. STRATEGIC HEALTH AUTHORITIES 
 
3.1 In the second strand of consultation on restructuring of the NHS, the 

three existing SHAs in the Eastern Region – Bedfordshire/ 
Hertfordshire, Essex and Norfolk/Suffolk/Cambridgeshire – support as 
their preferred option a single SHA for the six Counties, coterminous 
with the remit of the Government Office for the Eastern Region. 

 
3.2 The rationale for a single, Regional SHA is — 
 

• the likelihood that there will be a significant reduction in the 
overall number of PCTs; 

• the Department of Health’s criteria for reconfiguration at a 
strategic level to be aligned as closely as possible with a single 
Government Office and the requirement to achieve significant 
reductions in administration and management costs; and 

• the expectation that a reduction from three to one SHA would 
generate savings of around half the existing core annual 
budgets of £14.1m in the Region for reinvestment in front line 
services. 

 
4. AMBULANCE TRUSTS 
 
4.1 The consultation on changes to Ambulance Trusts proposes the 

replacement of the existing 34 Trusts in England with 11, based 
broadly around Government Regional Office boundaries.  The 
exceptions are in each of the South East and South West Regions, 
where two Trusts are suggested. 

 
4.2 In the Eastern Region, a single Trust is proposed to replace the 

existing three Trusts – East Anglian (Norfolk/Suffolk/Cambridgeshire), 
Essex and Bedfordshire/Hertfordshire. 

 
4.3 The benefits which it is suggested would be achieved from the 

restructuring include — 
 

• an opportunity to raise the standards of service provided by all 
Trusts to the level of the best; 

• the savings in bureaucracy, overheads and procurement 
practices for investment in front line services; 

5



• a quicker and more effective response to a diverse range of 
patients with different health care requirements; 

• the capacity for larger Trusts to sustain better levels of 
performance; and 

• better opportunities for staff. 
 
5. CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1 The proposals outlined in this report preface what are likely to be 

major changes in the structure and arrangements for the delivery of 
health services nationally and locally. 

 
5.2 The earlier representations which were made on behalf of the District 

Council seeking the inclusion in the consultation of an option for the 
retention of the existing Huntingdonshire PCT were unsuccessful. 

 
5.3 The outcome of debate on Councillor Holley’s Motion to full Council 

on 22nd February is likely to determine the District Council’s response 
to the consultation on the reconfiguration of PCTs.  Otherwise, 
Cabinet is invited to consider its responses to the consultations on 
proposed arrangements for a single SHA and Ambulance Trust in the 
Eastern Region. 

 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
“Creating a Patient-Led NHS – Delivering the NHS Improvement Plan” – 
Department of Health, March 2005 
“Department of Health: Review of Health Structures” – Report to Executive 
Committee of the East of England Regional Assembly, September 2005 
HDC Cabinet meeting, 13th October 2005 
“NHS Consultation Papers – PCTs, SHAs and Ambulance Trusts” – December 
2005 – March 2006 
 
 
Contact Officers: Peter Watkins, Director of Central Services# 
    (01480) 388002 
   Mrs Helen Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
    (01480) 388008 

6



CABINET 23RD FEBRUARY 2006 

 
 

CONSULTATION ON NEW PRIMARY CARE TRUSTS ARRANGEMENTS IN 
NORFOLK, SUFFOLK AND CAMBRIDGESHIRE 
(Report of the Older Persons Working Group) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to acquaint the Cabinet with the 

deliberations of the Older Persons Working Group established by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery and Resources) 
arising from their consideration of the formal proposals published by 
the Norfolk, Suffolk and Cambridgeshire Strategic Health Authority for 
the reconfiguration of Primary Care Trusts in the Eastern Region.  

 
1.2 The Working Group met on 25th January 2006 and Councillors Mrs M 

Banerjee, K J Churchill, S J Criswell and J E Garner were present. 
 
1.3 Also in attendance was Mr A Roberts. 
 
2. CONSULTATION ON NEW PRIMARY CARE TRUSTS 
 ARRANGEMENTS IN NORFOLK, SUFFOLK AND 
 CAMBRIDGESHIRE 
 
2.1 The Working Group considered ‘Consultation on New Primary Care 

Trusts Arrangements in Norfolk, Suffolk and Cambridgeshire’, which 
was published by the Norfolk, Suffolk and Cambridgeshire Strategic 
Health Authority (SHA).  It was noted that the document contained the 
following: 

 
  ‘There is no national blue print for the number or shape of PCTs 

- different reasons will invariably need different solutions. In 
some areas, for instance, the formation of larger PCTs may be 
seen as the key to really effective local commissioning and 
service planning. For others, smaller PCTs may fit local needs 
better’. 

 
2.2 The Working Group also took into consideration correspondence 

received from the Chairman of Huntingdonshire PCT, Michael Lynch, 
to which was attached the PCTs submission to the Department of 
Health ‘Commissioning a Patient-led NHS in Huntingdonshire’ and a 
press release from Jonathon Djanogly, MP on the matter. 

 
2.3 During initial discussions, it was noted that - 
 

♦ The District Council contributed to the cost of the Director of 
Public Health for Huntingdonshire; 

♦ If PCT boundaries were coterminous with local authority 
boundaries, Huntingdonshire would have a larger population 
than Peterborough, yet Peterborough was being considered as 
a stand alone PCT; 

 

Agenda Item 3b

7



 2

♦ Academic research had found ‘little evidence of the positive 
effects claimed for increased size on the costs of performance 
of Primary Care Organisations’ (Wilkins et al 2003). This finding 
was endorsed by Bojke et al 2001; and 

♦ The Health Commission recently had described the national 
proposals as ill thought out and unwise so soon after the last 
restructuring. 

 
2.4 The Working Group went on to express the view that the Council had 

a very good, close working relationship with the PCT. This 
relationship extended to the Strategic Partnership for 
Huntingdonshire. An example was sited concerning the Little Paxton 
surgery which demonstrated the ability of residents to influence the 
PCT and achieve the service they needed. This relationship could be 
jeopardised if either of the options for Cambridgeshire currently under 
consideration were adopted, and specifically, the ability of the Council 
to influence the PCT and the level of accountability to local people 
demonstrated by the Little Paxton example.  

 
2.5 Members were also of the view that Huntingdonshire PCT was well 

run and financially viable. At the same time they recognised that 
others were not in the same position. In this case it was suggested 
that rather than reconfigure it, Huntingdonshire PCT should be held 
up as an example of best practice from which others could learn. This 
would not prevent reconfiguration of other PCTs were local 
circumstances meant it was appropriate.  

 
2.6 With regard to the savings that were claimed would result from the 

reconfiguration, the Working Group were of the opinion that a 
countywide PCT would require an additional tier of officers at a local 
level to deliver the engagement with local residents and communities 
that would be required of the new PCT. This would mean that the 
predicted savings would not be realised. In addition, members felt 
that the benefits of larger scale purchasing could be achieved through 
partnership approaches between PCTs. 

 
2.7 The Working Group expressed reservations at the capacity of general 

practitioners to carry out an enhanced role under the Practice Based 
Commissioning approach, which would be required of them by the 
end of 2006. They also had concerns at the potential loss of the local 
focus of community medicine.  The SHA report suggested that the 
PCT would, in future, only have a commissioning role.  At present, 
however, the PCT was the sole provider of community medicine, 
which included district nursing, school nursing, midwifery services, 
community psychiatry, services for children with learning difficulties, 
speech therapy and other similar community care.  Clarification was 
required of who would provide these services in the future. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Working Group has reviewed the options set out by the Strategic 

Health Authority for the reconfiguration of PCTs in Norfolk, Suffolk 
and Cambridgeshire. A number of concerns have been noted, which 
are set out above. However, Members felt that the Council response 
to the SHA should stress the positive aspects of the current 

8



 3

arrangements as the basis for retaining a separate PCT for 
Huntingdonshire, namely that Huntingdonshire Primary Care Trust is 
well run, it meets local needs, operates within budget and currently 
complies with the duties referred to in the consultation document that 
will become the responsibility of the proposed countywide PCT. In 
addition, the Working Group suggested that the Council’s response 
should be circulated to the SHA Huntingdonshire PCT, the Secretary 
of State for Health and Local MPs. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 The Panel therefore 
 

RECOMMEND 
  
 a)  that the Cabinet be requested to consider informing the SHA 

that a PCT for Huntingdonshire should be retained having 
coterminous boundaries with the District Council; 

b) that the Cabinet be requested to stress the positive aspects of 
the Council’s relationship with the PCT and of the way the PCT 
operates as set out above; 

c) that the Cabinet be requested to endorse the PCT submission 
to the Department of Health dated 31st October 2005 on a 
proposal for ‘Commissioning a Patient-led NHS in 
Huntingdonshire’; and 

d) that the Cabinet be requested to send a copy of the response to 
the PCT, the Secretary of State for Health and local MP’s.  

 
 
(Note: Members are reminded that the District Council’s response will be 
considered by way of a motion to full Council on 22nd February 2006) 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET                  23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 

LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT: GOVERNANCE 
(Report by Head of Policy) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council, subject to Reservations, has endorsed the draft Local 

Area Agreement (LAA) for Cambridgeshire.  The governance 
arrangements for the LAA include the establishment of a Board to 
oversee the achievement of the Agreement. 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to seek the appointment of a Council 

representative to sit on the LAA Board. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 Partners to the Agreement have endorsed the principle of 

establishing a LAA Board in lieu of a County-wide Local Strategic 
Partnership, as an executive body with the purpose of developing, 
communicating and ensuring achievement of the LAA framework 
outcomes. 

 
2.2 The Board will have 12 executive members drawn from business, 

District Councils/Local Strategic Partnerships, the County Council, the 
Children & Young People Strategic Partnership, the Police, health, 
voluntary and community sectors, as follows:- 

 
District Councils/LSPs 5 representatives (one representative 

from each District, who is also a member 
of the LSP Board) 
 

Cambridgeshire  
County Council 

2 representatives (one to represent the 
interest of the Children & Young People 
Strategic Partnership) 
 

Cambridgeshire 
Constabulary 
 

1 representative 

Health 1 representative 
 

Business 1 representative (also member of the 
Greater Cambridge Partnership) 
 

Voluntary Sector 2 representatives (one representative 
covering rural interests) 
 

 
2.3 The terms of reference of the Board include — 
 

• facilitate and deliver improvements to public services in the 
County by delivering the LAA; 

 

Agenda Item 4

11



• provide the leadership required to achieve delivery of the LAA 
having regard to Community Strategies and Plans and other 
jointly agreed strategies; 

 
• improve partnership working that will lead to continuous 

development; 
 
• ensure cross-cutting themes are explored and developed so that 

the full potential of the LAA can be realised; 
 
• oversee the pooling and alignment of resources to tackle priorities 

in the most cost-effective way; 
 
• oversee the effective use and management of resources; 

 
• demonstrate flexibility and take account of the different needs of 

different partners; 
 

• maintain clarity as to where responsibility and accountability lie 
and identify and address areas of under-performance; 

 
• play a high level role in performance review and management to 

ensure priorities are being delivered; and 
 

• respond to Government reviews of the LAA. 
 
2.4 Currently the District Council is represented on the Board of the 

Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership and it would be appropriate for 
this level of representation to be carried forward to the LAA Board. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 In the circumstances, it is recommended that the Leader of the 

District Council be nominated to serve on the Local Area Agreement 
Board. 

 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement 
 
Contact Officer: Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy 
   (01480) 388005 

12



CABINET                                                                23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 
 

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS: 
SHAPING THEIR FUTURE 

(Report by Head of Policy) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity to consider 

and comment on Local Strategic Partnerships: Shaping Their Future, 
a consultation paper issued by the Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister.  Copies of the consultation document are available at 
http://www.odpm.gov.uk/index.asp?id=1162320 or on request from 
the Policy Division. 

 
1.2 This report summarises some of the main points of the consultation 

paper under four sections – 
 

• the role of Local Strategic Partnerships (LSPs) and Sustainable 
Community Strategies (SCS); 

• governance; 
• accountability; and 
• capacity. 

 
1.3 The consultation is based on the development of existing models and 

thinking about LSPs and community strategies and is informed by a 
recent national evaluation and work undertaken by the Audit 
Commission.  It poses a series of questions, set out in the Annexe to 
this report. 

 
1.4 The consultation paper is being considered by a number of the 

partners involved in the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership (HSP), 
who will submit their own comments to the ODPM.  The Board of the 
HSP has also considered the implications of the proposals and where 
appropriate their comments have been incorporated into section 7 – 
Implications and Conclusions, post. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The consultation is part of the Government’s debate on the future of 

local government and includes key ambitions for the future 
development of LSPs, including – 

 
• a commitment from to the LSP model of partnerships and the 

SCS as an over-arching local plan; 
 
• the involvement of local authorities, including Members, in 

facilitating action through the LSP and SCS; 
 

• delivering against the priorities for joint action in the SCS, Local 
Area Agreement (LAA), Local Development Framework, etc; 
and 

Agenda Item 5

13



 2

• engagement with neighbourhoods and parishes so that they 
can influence service delivery. 

 
3. THE ROLE OF LSPs AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY 

STRATEGIES 
 
3.1 The Government suggests that LSPs should increasingly become 

involved in the delivery and commissioning of services.   
 
3.2 LSPs also have key roles in terms of increasing the opportunities for 

neighbourhood engagement and in supporting such engagement by 
ensuring that neighbourhoods and parish councils can influence 
priorities.  Linked to this role is the development of coordinating 
community leadership through partnership. 

 
3.3 A further influence on the role of the LSP is the change in focus of 

Community Strategies to become Sustainable Community Strategies 
with fully integrated social, environmental and economic objectives.  
The Government envisage enhancement of strategies by better 
definition and analysis of baseline data and evidence, input from 
neighbourhoods/partners and links to regional and sub-regional 
activities. 

 
3.4 The Government therefore envisage the role of LSPs as — 
 

• a partnership of partnerships, providing the strategic 
coordination and linking with other plans and bodies at 
regional, sub-regional and local level; 

 
• producing and delivering a Sustainable Community Strategy; 
 
• developing and driving the effective delivery of Local Area 

Agreements; and 
 
• agreeing an action plan for achieving Sustainable Community 

Strategy priorities, incorporating the LAA outcomes. 
 
3.5 In two tier areas, it is expected that — 
 

• County level LSPs will agree the LAA and relevant action 
plan, taking into account priorities identified by District Councils 
and LSPs in their community strategies; 

 
• District level LSPs will, through their Sustainable Community 

Strategies, be fully involved in the drawing-up and 
implementing of the County-wide Sustainable Community 
Strategy and will reflect the LAA outcomes in the District LSPs’ 
action plans and future iterations of District-led plans including 
Local Development Frameworks. 

 
3.6 The consultation paper also re-states the need to make explicit the 

relationship with Local Development Frameworks to ensure that the 
land use requirements of the SCS are implemented.   

 

14



 3

3.7 In two tier areas the consultation paper supports arrangements 
where either District level SCS are aggregated to form a County 
Strategy or the County Strategy focuses on where it can add value to 
District Strategies. 

 
4. GOVERNANCE 
 
4.1 The consultation paper identifies that transparent and effective 

governance arrangements are essential to enable LSPs to — 
 

• fulfil their coordinating role as a partnership of partnerships; 
• move from advisory to commissioning’ 
• avoid duplication; and 
• ensure wide representation, particularly the involvement of 

local authorities. 
 
4.2 It is recognised that the model of governance for LSPs must reflect 

local circumstances and detailed structures are not specified.  
However, the paper outlines a basic structure which includes an 
Executive Board which is able to take strategic decisions, 
underpinned by local thematic partnerships which will effectively be 
the delivery mechanisms for the partnership.  Consideration is being 
given to the issue of geographic boundaries of partner organisation 
and whether these can be aligned.  The consultation paper also 
discusses the idea of Local Public Service Boards, which it believes 
should be established within the LSP, rather than as a rival to it to 
avoid the blurring of accountability and decision-making. 

 
4.3 Local Area Agreements are seen as a means of delivering outcomes 

to achieve the priorities of the LSP and SCS and the consultation 
paper suggests the usefulness of structuring LSPs around the four 
blocks of LAAs (safer, stronger communities; children and young 
people; healthier communities and older people; and economic 
development and enterprise) with other partnership groups as 
necessary.   

 
4.4 Active and wide representation in all sections of the LSP is seen to be 

a key to effective governance and the consultation paper specifically 
highlights the need for involvement of the voluntary and community 
sector and business sectors. 

 
4.5 The consultation paper discusses the benefits of providing LSPs with 

some form of legislative foundation, to — 
 

• signal the importance of partnership working; 
• reinforce and clarifying the LSP’s role; 
• reiterate the local authority’s role; 
• set out minimum expectation on partners; and 
• ensure that key public sector agencies are engaged in the 

partnership. 
 
4.6 However, the Government recognises that such a model could create 

a new statutory entity and a new layer of local bureaucracy to rival 
democratically elected local authorities.  As such it is not a model 

15



 4

which they wish to pursue and as an alternative suggest a “duty to 
co-operate” - following the model applied to partnerships such as the 
Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnerships and, more recently, the 
Children’s Trust arrangements. 

 
5. ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
5.1 The consultation paper identifies that clear accountability requires — 
 

• mutually understood and accepted ways of working; 
• internal performance management; and 
• external scrutiny. 

 
5.2 Within the LSP, each partner is responsible for the actions that they 

agree to undertake and as such are accountable to their organisation 
and to the local community.  The consultation paper suggests that 
formal agreements or protocols between partners can be an effective 
way of ensuring clarity about who is responsible for the different 
elements of the SCS and LAA delivery.   
 

5.3 Although the Government are considering creating a duty on public 
sector bodies to participate, they have no plans to make LSPs 
statutory bodies.  Local authorities with their democratic mandate 
and community leadership role are ultimately responsible therefore 
for the LSP, SCS and the delivery of LAAs. 

 
5.4 Effective performance management is an important element which 

will help to ensure accountability for allocating delivery of outcomes 
to partners and monitoring progress against performance. 

 
5.5 Elected members of local authorities have a unique role and as such 

their support to the LSP and community strategy process is seen as 
crucial to achieving success.  However, in terms of accountability, 
existing mechanisms like the Overview & Scrutiny role are not being 
used fully in terms of LSPs.  Research supporting the consultation 
paper suggests that the precise role of elected members – both 
Executive and non-Executive - is not currently clear and highlights 
one potential role of Overview & Scrutiny Panels in working with their 
Executive to identify community needs, in scrutinising plans and 
priorities, and in evaluating success. 

 
5.6 The consultation paper argues that it is crucial that local residents are 

involved in a coherent way that makes most efficient use of partner 
resources and residents’ time.  It suggests that the alignment of the 
local development framework’s statement of community involvement 
with the development of SCS and the LAA would provide an 
opportunity to establish such a practice. 

 
6. CAPACITY ISSUES 
 
6.1 The consultation paper recognises that to meet this changing role the 

capacity of LSPs is becoming increasingly important, in particular — 
 

• the skills needed to develop effective partnerships; 

16



 5

 
• the resources available for developing the SCS and the 

operation of the Partnerships; 
 

• the availability of general support and training to partners of 
the LSP. 

 
6.2 The consultation paper identifies some of the new or changing skills 

required by the shift in the role of Strategic Partnerships.  It also 
identifies that the majority of funding for Strategic Partnerships 
currently comes from resources from within local authorities, but that 
increasingly partner organisations are allocating resources to the 
achievement of priorities through partnership.  

 
7. IMPLICATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS  
 
7.1 The consultation on the future shape of Local Strategic Partnerships 

is intended to form part of the debate on the future of local 
government.  However, it is regarded as premature to consider these 
proposals in isolation from suggestions for changes in the structure of 
local government.   

 
7.2 The model used in the consultation paper is based on a presumption 

that each local authority should have its own LSP and sustainable 
community Strategy.  This model is different from the one currently 
operating in Huntingdonshire/Cambridgeshire.  While there is some 
attempt to discuss the respective roles in a two-tier structure, the 
consultation paper does not appear to grasp the complexity of 
partnership working across a number of tiers, nor does it offer the 
clarity which would avoid duplication or add value to the work of 
individual partners.   

 
7.3 There is a general consensus within the membership of the 

Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership that any guidance on the 
structure and roles of Strategic Partnerships should not be 
prescriptive.  This would allow effective partnerships to develop 
which meet local circumstances.  Many of the proposals to develop 
strategic partnerships identified in the consultation paper are being 
implemented locally, albeit some are in the early stages of 
development. 

 
8. RECOMMENDATION 
 
8.1 The Cabinet are requested to endorse the comments set out in the 

conclusions to this report for submission as part of the consultation 
exercise, together with any specific comments relating to the direct 
questions set out in the Annexe to this report. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
Local Strategic Partnerships: Shaping Their Future – a consultation paper 
issued by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, December 2005. 
 
Contact Officer: Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy 
    (01480) 388005 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEXE 
 
Key Questions  
 
The role of LSPs and Sustainable Community Strategies 
LSPs, Sustainable Community Strategies and LAAs 
 
1: Do you agree that the key role of the LSP should be to develop the vision 
for the local area, through the Sustainable Community Strategy and the 
'delivery contract' through the LAA (as set out in figures 1 & 2) 
 
Regional/sub-regional engagement 
2: We believe it is important that LSPs reflect regional/sub-regional plans 
where relevant in their Sustainable Community Strategy priorities and that 
regional organisations and partnerships take account of key local needs. How 
can this greater co-ordination best be facilitated? 
 
Links to local plans 
3: Would a requirement on bodies producing theme or service-based plans to 
‘have regard’ to the Sustainable Community Strategy in doing so and vice 
versa, increase the LSP's ability to take the over-arching view in an area? 
 
Sustainable Community Strategies 
4: Are the proposed steps in the development of a Sustainable Community 
Strategy correct?  
 
5: What more could be done to ensure Sustainable Community Strategies are 
better able to make the links between social, economic and environmental 
goals and to deal more effectively with the area’s cross-boundary and longer-
term impacts ? 
 
Neighbourhood Engagement 
6: What should be the role of the LSP in supporting neighbourhood 
engagement and ensuring the neighbourhood/parish voice, including diverse 
and minority communities, is heard at the principal local level? 
 
7: In two-tier areas, is it most appropriate for the responsibility for 
neighbourhood engagement to rest with the district level LSP? 
 
Links with Local Development Framework 
8: How can spatial planning teams best contribute to Sustainable Community 
Strategies through the LSP and ensure that LDFs and Sustainable Community 
Strategies are closely linked? 
 
9: How could revised guidance and accompanying support materials best 
ensure that Sustainable Community Strategies and Local Development 
Frameworks join up effectively? 
 

19



Two-tier areas 
10: Should every local authority area have its own LSP? 
 
11: Would the establishment of a greater delineation of roles between county 
and district LSPs as suggested be sensible?  
 
12: We believe that it is important that the LSP is made up of the thematic 
partnerships in the area together with an LSP board. What is your view? 
 
13: We believe that a rationalisation of local partnerships would help the LSP 
executive take an effective overview. Would clustering partnerships around 
the four LAA blocks be a sensible way to achieve this? 
 
14: We believe that the geographic boundaries of partners within LSPs is 
important. What do you see as the opportunities for, and barriers to, co-
terminosity shared geographic boundaries? 
 
15: Within the LSP framework and its established priorities, would the 
creation of single delivery vehicles to tackle particular issues be helpful? 
 
Ensuring wide representation 
16: How can the neighbourhood and parish, tiers be involved most effectively 
on the LSP on a)the executive and b) individual thematic partnerships? 
 
17: How can the private, voluntary and community sectors be involved most 
effectively on the LSP as a) the executive and b) individual thematic 
partnerships? 
 
Providing a legislative foundation 
18: Would a duty to co-operate with the local authority, in producing and 
implementing the Community Strategy, help to set LSPs on a firmer footing 
and better enable their enhanced delivery co-ordination role? 
 
19: If so, what obligations, such as attendance, financial or staff support, 
would be useful to place on partners? 
 
20: If so, which public sector agencies would the duty be most sensibly 
placed on? 
 
21: Should there be a statutory duty on local authorities and named partners 
to promote the engagement of the voluntary and community sectors in the 
LSP? 
 
Accountability between partners 
22: Should each partnership be encouraged to produce protocols or 
‘partnership agreements’ between partners to ensure clear lines of 
accountability for the delivery of agreed outcomes? 
 

20



23: We believe that if partnership working was included as part of other key 
agencies’ assessments it would be effective in securing greater commitment 
from other public sector agencies. What are your views? 
 
Involvement of local councillors 
24: What do you see as the key role for executive councillors within LSPs? 
 
25: What do you see as the appropriate role for backbenchers particularly in 
ensuring a high quality of local engagement? 
 
26: What would make councillors' powers of overview and scrutiny more 
effective in scrutinising the 4 blocks of the LAA? 
 
Involvement of Members of Parliament 
27: What would be the most appropriate way for a Member of Parliament to 
be involved with the LSP and how can we ensure that it is complementary to 
the role of local councillors? 
 
Involvement of Communities Served 
28: How can we promote effective community engagement and involvement, 
from all sections of the community in shaping local priorities and public 
services? 
 
29: How can we maximise the opportunities for joint policy and joint activity 
on community engagement, including the LDF, the LAA and the Sustainable 
Community Strategy? 
 
30: How can accountability to local people and businesses be enhanced? 
 
31: What are your LSP’s key support/skill gaps? 
 
32: What extra or different support would be most helpful in shifting to a 
more delivery focused role? 
 
33: How would LSPs prefer to receive information and support; through 
guidance, toolkits, sign-posting to existing information, practical learning 
opportunities etc? 
 
34: How can LSPs ensure that adequate learning and support provision is 
available to build the capacity of communities to engage with the LSP and its 
partners at the various levels? 
 
35: What learning or development do you feel is required by LSPs in order to 
delivery sustainable communities that embody the principles of sustainable 
development at the local level? 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
CABINET 23 FEBRUARY 2006 

 
 

MONITORING OF THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME – 2005/06 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 This report highlights the variations from the currently approved Capital 

Programme (as updated for any member or officer decisions already 
taken in accordance with the Code of Financial Management). 

 
1.2 More detailed information on specific schemes can be obtained from the 

relevant Head of Service.  
 
 
2. MONITORING INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Budget approved in February 2005 and any subsequent 

adjustments are shown below:- 
 

 Gross 
Budget 

External 
Contributions 

Net 
Budget 

Capital £000 £000 £000 
Approved (February 2005) 27,658 4,571 23.087 
Delayed/Deferred from 2004/05 (21 July 2005) 5,760 1,008 4,752 
Cabinet approved variations 729 -375 1,104 
Adjusted Total Capital Budget 34,147 5,204 28,943 
    
Forecast Variations    
Previously reported (21 July and 3 November)    

Timing Variations -9,947 -649 -9,298 
Cost Variations -180  -180 

Further variations included in draft Medium Term 
Plan and this report 

   

MTP Timing Variations -2,379 -1,662 -717 
MTP Cost Variations -153 45 -198 
Post MTP Variations (See para 2.2) -181  -181 

    
Forecast Capital Expenditure for 2005/06  21,499 2,938 18,561 

 
 
2.2 Since the recent updating of the Medium Term Plan, further timing 

changes have been identified and are listed below:- 
 

 £000 
Expenditure deferred to 2006/07  
Great Whyte, Ramsey – Environmental Improvement – delayed due 
to objections by the Town Council which have now been resolved, 
now expected on-site May 2006. 

-147 

CCTV – Improvements at Leisure Centres – delayed as a result of 
delays to other projects at Sawtry and St Neots. 

-45 

Increase in staff time charged to capital schemes from revenue 11 
TOTAL  -181 

 
 

Agenda Item 6

23



2.3 Annex A shows, for each scheme, any variation in the planned 
completion date or the scheme cost. The final page of the Annex defines 
the content of each column. 
 
 

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

2005/ 2006/ 2007/ 2008/ 2009/ 
 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Post MTP variations  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
      
Net Capital -181 181    
Net Revenue -15 -5    

 
 
4 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 It is RECOMMENDED that Cabinet: 
 

i) Note the monitoring statement at Annex A. 
ii) Note the latest variations and their estimated capital and 

revenue impact. 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Capital programme and monitoring working papers. 
Previous Cabinet and Committee reports on capital expenditure. 
 
 
 
Contact Officer – Steve Couper    01480 388103 

 

24



A
N

N
EX

 A
  

M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

 P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
: 

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 

64
3 

O
ak

 T
re

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

tre
 O

xm
oo

r H
un

tin
gd

on
 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
20

91
 

86
45

 
0 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

>>
 

Le
is

ur
e 

Li
ne

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
0 

0 
0 

20
 

0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

65
74

 
86

65
 

0 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t &
 T

ra
ns

po
rt
 

C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 

 
48

0 
C

ar
 P

ar
ki

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

31
-M

ar
-0

7 
0 

0 
0 

22
46

 
0 

 
00

/0
14

/A
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

ps
 - 

P
h 

5 
30

-J
an

-0
6 

0 
0 

22
 

11
5 

0 
 

02
/0

17
/B

 
Fe

ns
ta

nt
on

 C
ar

 P
ar

k 
30

-D
ec

-0
3 

0 
91

 **
 

0 
22

 
0 

N
ow

 c
om

pl
et

e 
C

C
TV

 
 

00
/0

20
.0

2 
C

C
TV

 - 
C

am
er

a 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 (0
5/

06
) 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

99
 

0 
C

rim
e 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
 

00
/0

36
.0

3 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r -
 L

ig
ht

in
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (0
5/

06
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

23
 

0 
S

t N
eo

ts
 R

iv
er

si
de

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
- £

15
k 

 
 

co
m

m
ite

d 
 

W
or

k 
st

ar
te

d 
on

 s
ite

. 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
 

03
/4

31
.0

3 
A

re
a 

Jo
in

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 S

m
al

l S
ca

le
 Im

ps
 (0

5/
06

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
10

9 
0 

>>
 

02
/0

50
/A

 
G

re
at

 W
hy

te
, R

am
se

y 
- E

nv
 Im

p 
P

h 
2 

30
-S

ep
-0

5 
0 

43
 

22
 

18
4 

0 
O

bj
ec

tio
ns

 re
m

ov
ed

 b
y 

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
 

 
- d

es
ig

n 
w

ill
 n

ow
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 s

ta
rt 

on
 

 
 s

ite
 in

 M
ay

 2
00

6 
 

02
/2

41
/B

 
H

ea
rt 

of
 O

xm
oo

r 
28

-J
ul

-0
6 

0 
0 

34
2 

14
 

0 
 

01
/0

49
/A

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 - 
P

ha
se

 2
 

31
-D

ec
-0

5 
0 

-6
 **

 
70

 
11

30
 

0 
co

m
pl

et
e 

 
02

/0
51

/A
 

Li
ttl

e 
W

hy
te

, R
am

se
y 

- E
nv

 Im
ps

 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
52

 
22

 
20

 
0 

O
rd

er
s 

pl
ac

ed
 fo

r s
tre

et
lig

ht
in

g.
  

 
S

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

du
ce

d.
 

>>
 

01
/1

04
.0

3 
O

xm
oo

r E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (0

5/
06

) 
30

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
-1

3 
**
 

0 
66

 
0 

 
01

/1
57

.0
2 

S
m

al
l S

ca
le

 Im
ps

 - 
D

is
tri

ct
 W

id
e 

(0
4/

05
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
0 

13
 **

 
84

 
84

 
0 

 
01

/1
57

.0
3 

S
m

al
l S

ca
le

 Im
ps

 - 
D

is
tri

ct
 W

id
e 

(0
5/

06
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

86
 

0 
M

os
t s

ch
em

es
 n

ow
 c

om
pl

et
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s 

 
01

/1
63

/A
 

G
en

er
al

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

-P
ub

lic
 C

on
s 

01
-F

eb
-0

4 
0 

11
2 

0 
36

 
0 

C
ab

in
et

 h
av

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
fir

st
  

 
ye

ar
s 

w
or

k.
  C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

st
ar

ts
 in

  

 
P

ag
e 

1 
of

 8
 

25



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

>>
 

03
/3

02
/A

 
N

ew
 P

ub
lic

 C
on

ve
ni

en
ce

s 
31

-D
ec

-0
6 

0 
0 

30
0 

12
50

 
0 

A
P

C
's

 in
 v

ill
ag

es
 b

ei
ng

 re
m

ov
ed

  
 

C
ab

in
et

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 
 

 is
 s

ta
rti

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
w

or
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
up

po
rt
 

 
03

/4
00

.0
0 

B
us

 S
he

lte
rs

 - 
E

xt
ra

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 (0

3/
04

) 
31

-J
an

-0
4 

0 
69

 **
 

0 
33

 
0 

 
03

/4
00

.0
1 

B
us

 S
he

lte
rs

 - 
E

xt
ra

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 (0

4/
05

) 
30

-D
ec

-0
4 

0 
26

 **
 

35
 

35
 

0 
 

03
/4

00
.0

2 
B

us
 S

he
lte

rs
 - 

E
xt

ra
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 (0
5/

06
) 

28
-F

eb
-0

6 
0 

-2
2 

**
 

0 
70

 
0 

>>
 

48
3 

R
ur

al
 B

us
 S

to
p 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 

28
-F

eb
-0

5 
0 

48
 **

 
25

 
25

 
0 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
>>

 
00

/0
03

.0
3A

 Ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

/S
ig

ns
 (0

5/
06

) 
28

-F
eb

-0
6 

0 
-9

 **
 

0 
0 

# 
0 

 
03

/3
66

/A
 

C
yc

le
 R

ou
te

 - 
V

ie
w

s 
C

om
m

on
, H

un
tin

gd
on

 
30

-O
ct

-0
3 

0 
12

2 
1 

18
 

0 
W

or
k 

st
ar

te
d 

on
 s

ite
 e

ar
ly

 J
an

 2
00

6,
  

 
du

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

 
03

/3
61

.0
1 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
 (0

4/
05

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
30

 **
 

72
 

72
 

0 
B

us
 s

he
lte

rs
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
 

03
/3

61
.0

2 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

 (0
5/

06
) 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

2 
0 

G
M

C
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
cy

cl
ew

ay
 

 
A

m
bu

ry
 R

d 
C

yc
le

w
ay

 
>>

 
01

/0
95

.0
2 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt 
P

la
n 

(0
4/

05
) 

05
-F

eb
-0

5 
0 

0 
**
 

88
 

88
 

0 
 

01
/0

95
.0

3 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt 

P
la

n 
(0

5/
06

) 
30

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
89

 
0 

sc
he

m
es

 b
ei

ng
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

>>
 

02
/1

32
/A

 
R

ai
lw

ay
 S

ta
tio

ns
 - 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (0
4/

05
) 

28
-F

eb
-0

5 
0 

82
 

15
 

15
 

0 
W

or
k 

pl
an

ne
d 

to
 s

ta
rt 

in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

02
/1

32
.0

1 
R

ai
lw

ay
 S

ta
tio

ns
 - 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (0
5/

06
) 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

13
 

0 
15

 
0 

W
or

k 
du

e 
to

 s
ta

rt 
in

 m
ar

ch
 

 
03

/3
63

.0
2 

R
am

se
y 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

 (0
5/

06
) 

30
-M

ar
-0

7 
0 

0 
0 

42
 

0 
S

tra
te

gy
 n

ot
 b

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t y

et
 - 

 
 

de
la

y 
by

 C
ou

nt
y 

 
01

/1
52

.0
2 

S
af

e 
C

yc
le

 R
ou

te
s 

(0
4/

05
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
0 

52
 

10
5 

0 
0 

P
os

si
bl

e 
Is

la
nd

 C
om

m
on

 c
yc

le
w

ay
 

 
M

ig
ht

 b
e 

tra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 to

 S
t N

eo
ts

 to
w

n 
 

 to
 R

ai
lw

ay
 S

ta
tio

n 
 

01
/1

52
.0

3 
S

af
e 

C
yc

le
 R

ou
te

s 
(0

5/
06

) 
30

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
20

 
0 

G
M

C
 c

yc
le

w
ay

 
>>

 
02

/2
50

.0
2 

S
t N

eo
ts

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
S

tra
te

gy
 (0

4/
05

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
52

 
95

 
97

 
0 

Is
la

nd
 C

om
m

on
 c

yc
le

w
ay

 - 
de

la
y 

du
e 

 
 to

 le
ga

l a
nd

 E
nv

 A
ge

nc
y 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 
60

2 
O

pt
io

na
l W

he
el

ed
 B

in
s 

fo
r D

ry
 R

ec
yc

la
bl

es
 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

37
6 

0 
W

at
er

co
ur

se
s 

>>
 

H
en

br
oo

k,
 S

t N
eo

ts
 - 

R
et

ai
ni

ng
 W

al
l 

30
-M

ar
-0

4 
0 

10
4 

48
 

48
 

0 
D

ep
en

da
nt

 o
n 

cl
ai

m
 fr

om
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

 
 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
  

 
bu

t r
ef

ut
ed

.  
N

ow
 p

as
se

d 
to

 o
ur

  
 

in
su

re
rs

 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

39
73

 
65

29
 

0 

 
P

ag
e 

2 
of

 8
 

26



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

 P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
: 

Fi
na

nc
e 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

 
03

/9
99

.0
3 

V
A

T 
E

xe
m

pt
 C

ap
ita

l (
05

/0
6)

 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
12

7 
0 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 
>>

 
62

6 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

its
 - 

W
ire

le
ss

 W
or

ki
ng

 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
21

 
0 

18
 

0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

14
5 

14
5 

0 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
H

ou
si

ng
 &

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

up
po

rt
 

 
44

3 
C

om
m

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

eg
is

te
r 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

53
 

0 
 

01
/0

39
.0

3 
D

is
ab

le
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
G

ra
nt

s 
(0

5/
06

) 
30

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
76

9 
0 

U
nd

er
sp

en
d 

of
 £

85
k 

pr
ed

ic
te

d.
  D

ro
p 

 
 

in
 O

T 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 s
ta

ff 
 

 
sh

or
ta

ge
s 

at
 th

e 
P

C
T.

 
>>

 
00

/1
41

.0
3 

H
R

A
s 

an
d 

R
E

N
s 

(0
5/

06
) 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

20
2 

0 
U

nd
er

sp
en

d 
of

 £
14

k 
pr

ed
ic

te
d.

 
 

S
oc

ia
l H

ou
si

ng
 G

ra
nt

 (C
on

tin
ge

nc
y)

 (0
4/

05
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
0 

52
 

10
00

 
33

6 
0 

B
ud

ge
t i

s 
£1

m
 p

lu
s 

£2
7k

 in
fla

tio
n 

pl
us

 
 

 £
75

1,
03

4 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ov

er
 (f

or
 B

ar
fo

rd
  

 
R

oa
d 

et
c)

.  
£6

30
,1

60
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

  
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r. 
 A

s 
ag

re
ed

,  
 

re
m

ai
nd

er
 is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ov
er

 p
en

di
ng

  
 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

ts
 o

n 
H

ou
si

ng
  

 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
al

lo
ca

tio
n.

 
 

S
oc

ia
l H

ou
si

ng
 G

ra
nt

 (C
on

tin
ge

nc
y)

 (0
5/

06
) 

30
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

68
6 

0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

17
10

 
20

46
 

0 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
Le

ad
er

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

>>
 

03
/3

65
/A

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 B
oa

ty
ar

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

28
-F

eb
-0

4 
0 

13
0 

87
 

10
2 

0 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 s
m

al
l s

ch
em

es
 in

 th
e 

pa
rk

  
 

fo
r l

oc
al

is
ed

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
O

ffi
ce

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

 
03

/3
00

/A
 

P
at

hf
in

de
r H

ou
se

 Im
ps

 a
nd

 O
ne

 S
to

p 
S

ho
p 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
10

4 
0 

90
 

23
82

5 
0 

C
ou

nc
il 

de
ci

de
d 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

to
  

 
ca

rr
y 

on
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 w

ith
 lo

w
es

t  
 

te
nd

er
er

. 

 
P

ag
e 

3 
of

 8
 

27



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

 
01

/1
28

/A
 

P
ub

lic
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 A
cc

es
s 

- D
is

ab
ili

ty
 e

tc
 

30
-M

ar
-0

4 
0 

10
4 

-1
0 

80
 

-1
7 

D
D

A
 a

cc
es

s 
is

su
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
at

  
 

P
at

hf
in

de
r H

ou
se

 b
ei

ng
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

,  
 

ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f l
im

ite
d 

lif
e 

of
  

 
bu

ild
in

g.
 

 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

on
 e

xt
er

na
l i

ss
ue

s 
on

go
in

g 
 

 
as

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 C

O
M

T.
 

 
P

rio
ry

 C
en

tre
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 D
C

 O
ffi

ce
s 

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

>>
 

03
/3

58
/A

 
R

ur
al

 R
en

ew
al

 N
E

 H
un

ts
 - 

P
um

p 
P

rim
in

g 
(0

4/
05

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
0 

50
 

40
 

-3
0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

18
8 

24
04

7 
-4

7 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 In
iti

at
iv

es
 

 
03

/4
23

.0
1 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
 (0

5/
06

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
-2

6 
**
 

0 
10

 
0 

Le
is

ur
e 

Ev
en

ts
 a

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

 
02

/0
58

/A
 

G
ra

fh
am

 W
at

er
 C

en
tre

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
0 

0 
10

 
20

 
0 

>>
 

00
/9

99
.0

2 
Lo

ca
l L

ei
su

re
 P

ro
je

ct
 G

ra
nt

s 
(0

4/
05

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
0 

11
1 

11
1 

0 
 

00
/9

99
.0

3 
Lo

ca
l L

ei
su

re
 P

ro
je

ct
 G

ra
nt

s 
(0

5/
06

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
61

 
0 

Le
is

ur
e 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 
00

/0
01

/B
 

S
t N

eo
ts

 T
en

ni
s 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

01
-M

ar
-0

2 
0 

21
2 

0 
30

 
0 

N
O

F 
bi

d 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
ns

 fo
r  

 
en

tir
e 

si
te

 
Pa

rk
s 

an
d 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
es

 
>>

 
44

6 
Fo

ot
ba

ll 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

31
-M

ar
-0

7 
0 

52
 

20
5 

21
0 

0 
S

t N
eo

ts
 - 

P
rio

ry
 P

ar
k 

 
A

gr
ee

d 
in

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

oc
al

 F
oo

tb
al

l  
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
  

 
be

in
g 

pr
ep

ar
ed

.  
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 g
ai

ne
d 

 
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

er
m

is
si

on
. 

 
S

t I
ve

s 
- O

ut
do

or
 C

en
tre

 
 

O
n 

ho
ld

 p
en

di
ng

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 

 
 b

y 
D

ev
el

op
er

s.
 S

ub
m

is
si

on
s 

to
  

 
Fo

ot
ba

ll 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

in
 M

ar
ch

 0
6 

>>
 

01
/1

21
/A

 
P

ilo
t L

in
ea

r P
ar

k 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

30
-N

ov
-0

3 
0 

12
1 

1 
12

0 
0 

O
. I

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
of

 s
tre

et
 li

gh
tin

g 
 

 
aw

ai
te

d 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
 

03
/3

69
.0

1 
P

la
y 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t (

03
/0

4)
 

31
-M

ar
-0

4 
0 

60
 **

 
0 

46
 

0 
sc

he
m

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

 
03

/3
69

.0
2 

P
la

y 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
04

/0
5)

 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
17

 **
 

49
 

49
 

0 
 

03
/3

69
.0

3 
P

la
y 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t (

05
/0

6)
 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

52
 

0 
S

ch
em

es
 b

ei
ng

 d
es

ig
ne

d 

 
P

ag
e 

4 
of

 8
 

28



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

 
46

7 
S

t N
eo

ts
 - 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
0 

17
 

10
0 

10
0 

0 
A

ll 
w

or
ks

 c
om

pl
et

ed
.  

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

 
 

op
en

ed
 o

ffi
ci

al
y 

on
 1

7t
h 

S
ep

te
m

be
r  

 
20

05
.  

V
er

t R
am

p 
is

 n
ow

 to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
  

 
fo

llw
in

g 
re

ce
ip

t o
f f

ur
th

er
 e

xt
er

na
l  

 
gr

an
t. 

O
m

itt
ed

 fr
om

 o
rig

in
al

 te
nd

er
 li

st
 

 
 o

f e
qu

ip
m

en
t. 

 
01

/1
07

/A
 

V
ar

io
us

 P
ar

ks
 - 

S
ig

ns
 

30
-D

ec
-0

3 
0 

82
 

0 
40

 
0 

O
rd

er
 p

la
ce

d.
  F

ab
ric

at
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

  
 

an
d 

ga
lv

an
is

ed
, a

w
ai

tin
g 

pa
in

tin
g.

 
 

02
/0

04
.0

3 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e'

s 
A

ct
iv

ity
 P

ar
ks

 (0
5/

06
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

64
 

0 
S

ch
em

es
 d

ep
en

da
nt

 o
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  
 

Fu
nd

in
g.

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

en
tr

es
 

 
01

/1
35

.0
1 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
en

tre
s 

- D
is

ab
le

d 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(0
3/

04
) 

31
-M

ar
-0

4 
0 

78
 

0 
30

 
0 

£1
9k

 c
ar

rie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fro
m

 0
3/

04
  

 
pe

nd
in

g 
re

tu
rn

 o
f D

is
ab

le
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
 

 
re

po
rts

 o
n 

al
l C

en
tre

s.
 

 
A

ny
 u

nu
se

d 
fu

nd
s 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
 

 
fo

rw
ar

d.
 

>>
 

02
/1

34
.0

1 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tre

s 
- F

ut
ur

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (0

4/
05

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
0 

**
 

80
3 

80
3 

0 
Te

nd
er

s 
ou

t i
n 

st
ag

es
. R

LC
/S

LC
  

 
re

tu
rn

s 
9/

7,
 H

LC
/S

N
LC

 re
tu

rn
s 

23
/7

,  
 

S
IL

C
 re

tu
rn

s 
10

/8
 (l

at
e 

ar
riv

ed
 2

7/
8)

 
 

R
LC

/S
LC

 u
nd

er
 w

ay
. H

LC
 u

nd
er

  
 

w
ay

. S
IL

C
 u

nd
er

 w
ay

. 
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l c

om
pl

et
io

n 
M

ar
ch

05
.  

 
C

ar
ry

 fo
rw

ar
d 

an
y 

un
us

ed
 fu

nd
s 

to
  

 
05

/0
6.

 
 

02
/1

34
.0

2 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tre

s 
- F

ut
ur

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (0

5/
06

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
42

3 
0 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 y
ea

r 3
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
 

 
(0

5/
06

) t
o 

be
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
en

tre
  

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
In

te
rn

al
 H

D
C

 te
am

s,
  

 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 
 

Fu
ll 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
ch

em
e 

 
 

de
la

ye
d 

til
l a

ll 
in

vo
ic

es
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 

 
 y

ea
r 2

. 
 

A
ny

 re
si

du
e 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fw

d 
to

  

 
P

ag
e 

5 
of

 8
 

29



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

 
03

/4
24

/A
 

R
am

se
y 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
en

tre
 - 

C
re

ch
e,

 O
ffi

ce
 &

  
31

-J
an

-0
5 

0 
13

 **
 

20
0 

33
9 

0 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 o
rig

in
al

 p
la

n 
no

w
  

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
. 

 
S

ch
em

e 
no

w
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 a
t £

30
8k

  
 

co
m

bi
ni

ng
 b

ot
h 

sc
he

m
es

 (L
26

0 
an

d 
 

 
L2

61
) a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 re
su

lta
nt

  
 

re
ve

nu
e.

 
 

Lo
w

es
t t

en
de

r 5
0k

 o
ve

r b
ud

ge
t. 

R
e-

 
 

te
nd

er
in

g.
 R

et
ur

ne
d 

30
 S

ep
 0

4.
  

 
R

en
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 lo
w

es
t t

en
de

r. 
 

 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 fo
r 1

4/
10

/0
4 

 
 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
to

ta
l o

f 3
28

k 
- e

xt
ra

 2
0k

  
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
 

C
ab

in
et

 a
pp

ro
va

l g
iv

en
 - 

as
 lo

ng
 a

s 
 

 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

 ta
ke

n 
fro

m
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 in
  

 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

ap
ita

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 In
vo

lv
es

  
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

ph
as

in
g 

of
 C

on
di

tio
n 

 
 

S
ur

ve
y.

 
 

W
or

k 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
29

/1
1 

- c
om

pl
et

io
n 

 
 

by
 0

7 
M

ay
 0

5 
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n 
sc

he
du

le
 

 
A

pr
 0

5 
- s

til
l o

n 
sc

he
du

le
. E

xp
ec

te
d 

 
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

05
/0

5/
05

. O
ffi

ci
al

 o
pe

ni
ng

  
 

07
/0

5/
05

 

 
02

/2
62

/B
 

S
aw

try
 - 

Fi
tn

es
s 

S
tu

di
o 

01
-A

pr
-0

5 
0 

56
 

61
4 

13
89

 
0 

Te
nd

er
s 

co
m

pl
et

e 
 

C
om

m
en

ce
d 

12
th

 S
ep

t 0
5.

  4
0 

w
ee

k 
 

 
co

nt
ra

ct
. S

ta
rts

 w
ith

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

ar
d 

 
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

, t
he

n 
m

ov
es

 to
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

 
 

w
or

ks
. S

til
l i

ss
ue

s 
on

 c
ar

/c
oa

ch
 p

ar
k 

 
 

w
ith

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

C
ol

le
ge

 g
ra

nt
  

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 

 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

as
 a

t 2
6 

Ja
n 

06
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
 

03
/3

33
/A

 
S

t N
eo

ts
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tre

 - 
C

re
ch

e 
&

 K
itc

he
ns

 
30

-N
ov

-0
3 

0 
69

 
0 

58
8 

0 
Te

nd
er

s 
ca

m
e 

in
 1

00
K

 o
ve

r e
xp

ec
te

d.
 

 
 

 
W

or
k 

de
fe

rr
ed

. 
 

N
o 

de
ci

si
on

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 to
 p

ro
ce

ed
  

 
w

ith
 re

-te
nd

er
in

g 
or

 p
ac

ka
gi

ng
 w

ith
  

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

19
44

 
44

85
 

0 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 &
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
 

49
5 

C
or

po
ra

te
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
D

oc
um

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
31

-M
ar

-0
8 

0 
0 

0 
63

7 
0 

 
03

/3
01

.0
0 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t -

  P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

W
id

e 
31

-M
ar

-0
7 

0 
0 

-1
91

 
19

7 
0 

 
03

/3
01

.2
0 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t -

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
31

-M
ar

-0
7 

0 
0 

16
5 

32
5 

0 
 

03
/3

01
.3

0 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t -
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
31

-M
ar

-0
7 

0 
0 

80
6 

18
16

 
0 

 
P

ag
e 

6 
of

 8
 

30



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

 
03

/3
01

.1
0 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t -

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
n 

D
el

iv
er

y 
31

-M
ar

-0
7 

0 
0 

16
1 

47
3 

0 
K

ey
 d

at
e 

2 
= 

re
le

as
e 

2 
in

to
 c

al
l c

en
tre

 
 

03
/3

75
/A

 
D

es
kt

op
 R

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
(0

3/
04

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
4 

10
4 

0 
37

 
10

0 
0 

R
ol

lo
ut

 d
el

ay
ed

 d
ue

 to
 o

th
er

 s
ta

ff 
 

 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 

 
03

/3
01

.0
4 

E
le

ct
io

ns
 S

ys
te

m
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
52

 
0 

38
 

20
 

-5
8 

R
ev

ie
w

 c
an

ce
lle

d 
 

01
/0

82
.0

2 
E

nh
an

ce
d 

S
ec

ur
ity

 o
f D

at
a 

N
et

w
or

k 
&

 C
om

p 
S

ys
ts

  
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
8 

**
 

45
 

45
 

0 
P

ro
je

ct
 c

om
pl

et
e 

 
03

/3
01

.1
1 

Le
is

ur
e 

S
ys

te
m

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
31

-M
ar

-0
5 

52
 

0 
48

 
12

8 
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l i
nt

er
fa

ce
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
 k

io
sk

  
 

de
la

ye
d 

du
e 

to
 s

ta
ff 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 B
us

in
es

s 
S

ys
te

m
 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
52

 
0 

95
 

10
1 

0 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t d

el
ay

ed
 - 

ch
an

ge
 o

f P
M

 
>>

 
03

/3
01

.0
8 

P
er

so
nn

el
/P

ay
ro

ll 
S

ys
te

m
 

31
-O

ct
-0

5 
0 

21
 

16
2 

21
0 

0 
D

el
ay

ed
 d

ue
 to

 s
ta

ff 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

  
 

P
er

so
nn

el
 

 
03

/3
01

.0
4 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 

31
-M

ar
-0

4 
10

4 
0 

29
 

35
 

0 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

so
ftw

ar
e 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 to
  

 
U

ni
fo

rm
 fo

r l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

  
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

gr
ou

p 
>>

 
S

er
ve

r M
an

ag
em

en
t 

31
-M

ar
-0

6 
0 

0 
0 

20
 

0 
N

ew
 b

id
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 D

oC
T 

 
03

/3
01

.0
4 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

R
ev

ie
w
 

31
-M

ar
-0

4 
74

 
0 

**
 

23
 

23
 

0 
P

ro
je

ct
 c

om
pl

et
e 

 
49

4 
V

oi
ce

 a
nd

 D
at

a 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

31
-M

ar
-0

7 
0 

0 
6 

21
6 

0 
D

el
ay

ed
 p

en
di

ng
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

of
  

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r n
ew

 H
Q

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

46
2 

G
od

m
an

ch
es

te
r N

ur
se

ry
 

31
-M

ar
-0

5 
0 

52
 

13
 

13
 

0 
 

02
/1

92
.0

3 
V

eh
ic

le
s 

Fl
ee

t R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
05

/0
6)

 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
12

41
 

-1
66

 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

20
67

 
56

00
 

-2
24

 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
>>

 
01

/0
77

/A
 

H
un

t T
ow

n 
C

en
t D

ev
 - 

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ev
 Is

su
es

 
30

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

11
0 

11
28

 
0 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 q
uo

te
d 

re
la

te
s 

on
ly

  
 

to
 a

ct
iv

ity
 in

 2
00

3/
04

.  
Th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
 

 
ru

ns
 to

 2
00

5/
06

. 
 

03
/3

58
.0

1 
R

ur
al

 R
en

ew
al

 N
E

 H
un

ts
 - 

P
um

p 
P

rim
in

g 
(0

5/
06

) 
30

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
52

 
-2

8 
>>

 
02

/2
24

/A
 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

28
-F

eb
-0

6 
0 

4 
0 

27
5 

0 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
 q

uo
te

d 
re

la
te

s 
on

ly
  

 
to

 a
ct

iv
ity

 fu
nd

ed
 in

 2
00

3/
04

. T
he

  
 

sc
he

m
e 

ru
ns

 to
 2

00
6/

07
. 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

11
7 

14
55

 
-2

8 
 P

O
R

TF
O

LI
O

: 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
C

rim
e 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
>>

 
00

/0
36

.0
2 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r -

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (0

4/
05

) 
30

-M
ar

-0
5 

0 
0 

**
 

22
 

22
 

0 
A

ll 
w

or
k 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 a

nd
 b

ill
s 

aw
ai

te
d 

 
P

ag
e 

7 
of

 8
 

31



M
TP

 - 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

SC
H

EM
ES

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 R
EP

O
R

T 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

A
ct

iv
e 

Sc
he

m
es

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
 

N
ET

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
E 

£0
00

's
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
D

ef
er

ra
l  

Sl
ip

pa
ge

  
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
To

ta
l 

Va
ria

nc
e 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

>>
 

01
/0

53
/A

 
Ya

xl
ey

 - 
B

ro
ad

w
ay

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

p 
01

-M
ar

-0
3 

0 
52

 **
 

0 
13

0 
0 

C
C

C
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r d
el

iv
er

y 
of

  
 

sc
he

m
e.

 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

0 
15

2 
0 

 P
O

R
TF

O
LI

O
: 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 &

 P
ol

ic
y 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

>>
 

03
/3

01
.0

4 
La

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 (0

3/
04

) 
31

-M
ar

-0
4 

11
7 

0 
1 

68
 

0 
R

ev
is

ed
 b

id
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 D

oC
T 

 
45

0 
P

ho
to

co
pi

er
s 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
31

-M
ar

-0
6 

0 
0 

0 
27

 
0 

>>
 

01
/1

24
/A

 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f P
rin

tin
g 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t/S

ys
te

m
s 

31
-M

ar
-0

3 
34

 
0 

**
 

0 
30

3 
0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

60
 

39
8 

0 
 

To
ta

l a
ll 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
16

77
8 

53
52

2 
-2

99
 

 
P

ag
e 

8 
of

 8
 

32



 
 A

N
N

EX
: M

TP
 - 

C
A

PI
TA

L 
SC

H
EM

ES
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

EP
O

R
T 

- D
EF

IN
IT

IO
N

S 
 A

ct
iv

e 
Sc

he
m

es
 2

00
5/

06
 

Al
l s

ch
em

es
 w

ith
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

(g
ro

ss
 o

r n
et

) i
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

re
po

rt 
re

la
te

s 
or

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

a 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

‘c
ur

re
nt

’ o
r ‘

ac
tu

al
’ c

om
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

.  
  

 
C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 
N

ET
 E

XP
EN

D
IT

U
R

E 
£0

00
's

 
 

 
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
D

ef
er

ra
l 

Sl
ip

pa
ge

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S 

 
 

D
at

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
(w

ee
ks

) 
20

05
/0

6 
T

ot
al

 
V

ar
ia

nc
e 

 
 PO

R
T

FO
L

IO
: 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 C
C

T
V

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

01
9 

C
C

TV
 - 

A
la

rm
 A

ct
ua

te
d 

C
am

er
a 

Po
si

tio
n 

31
-D

ec
-0

2 
0 

0 
40

 
40

 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pr
oj

ec
t a

pp
ra

is
al

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

 
  Pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 p

or
tfo

lio
 h

ol
de

rs
 

an
d 

th
en

 g
ro

up
ed

 b
y 

fu
nc

tio
n.

 

N
am

e 
of

 sc
he

m
e 

Th
e 

da
te

 g
iv

en
 

fo
r t

he
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

n 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
r i

n 
a 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

re
vi

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l. 
 Fo

r a
pp

ra
is

al
s 

th
at

 re
la

te
 to

 a
n 

an
nu

al
ly

 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

su
m

 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

da
te

 is
 a

ss
um

ed
 

as
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 
M

ar
ch

 fo
r t

he
 

ye
ar

 b
ei

ng
 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n.

 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

or
 a

ct
ua

l 
(fo

r c
om

pl
et

ed
 

sc
he

m
es

) t
im

e 
in

 
w

ee
ks

 b
y 

w
hi

ch
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

w
ill

 
va

ry
 fr

om
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 d

at
e.

  
 To

 q
ua

lif
y 

as
 a

 
‘d

ef
er

ra
l’ 

th
e 

de
la

y/
ac

ce
le

ra
tio

n 
m

us
t h

av
e 

be
en

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 in

 
ad

va
nc

e 
by

 a
 

pr
oj

ec
t b

oa
rd

 
(w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r)
. 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

or
 

ac
tu

al
 ti

m
e 

in
 

w
ee

ks
 b

y 
w

hi
ch

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
w

ill
 

va
ry

 fr
om

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 d
at

e 
or

 
ex

te
nd

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

pe
ri

od
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 

a 
‘d

ef
er

ra
l’ 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ut

ho
ri

se
d.

 
  Sc

he
m

es
 w

he
re

 
de

fe
rr

al
/s

lip
pa

ge
 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

an
 

‘a
ct

ua
l’ 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 
ar

e 
di

st
in

gu
is

he
d 

in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 b
y 

**
. 

N
et

 a
m

ou
nt

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
M

TP
 fo

r t
he

 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r 
to

ge
th

er
 a

ny
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 fr

om
 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 
ye

ar
. 

Th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

ne
t c

os
t o

f 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 

hi
st

or
ic

 
ac

tu
al

s a
nd

 
fu

tu
re

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. 

 Fo
r 

an
nu

al
ly

 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

su
m

s t
hi

s i
s 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ye
ar

 
fu

nd
in

g 
on

ly
. T

he
se

 
ar

e 
in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 b
y 

#.
 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
to

ta
l n

et
 c

os
t 

of
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 
ne

t 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 

Br
ie

f n
ar

ra
tiv

e 
de

sc
ri

bi
ng

 a
ny

 d
ef

er
ra

l, 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 o

r f
in

an
ci

al
 

va
ri

an
ce

. 

 

33



 

34



 
CABINET 

23 FEBRUARY 2006 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 

(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report comments on the performance of the fund from October to 
December 2005. Since April 2005 the Fund Managers have managed 
£73m of the Council’s funds: £26.5m with Investec, £26.5m with Alliance 
Capital and £20m with CDCM.   

1.2. The Monetary Policy Committee has held the base rate at 4.5% since 
August 2005. 

 

2.      PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 
 

2.1    Annex A provides comparative tables showing investment returns over 
various periods. 

2.2    October to December 2005 
The Council’s three Fund Managers all achieved a satisfactory, although 
uninspiring performance during the quarter. However they have all either 
reached or out-performed their benchmark, the industry average (see 
chart below) and the 7-day rate during the quarter and in the 9 months 
from April 2005. 
 
 

 
 
 
Investec continues to trade mostly in gilts, whereas Alliance Capital 
prefers to invest in corporate bonds and floating rate notes. CDCM 
succeeded in committing £8m for periods in excess of 1 year on 
attractive rates that will achieve 5.1% during 2006/7.  

 

Relative Performance Vs Industry  2005/06

0.0 

1.0 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

 
Investec 

05/06 Alliance
05/06  

CDCM 
05/06 b'mk 

(comp) B'mk (3- 
mth) Ind ave

Q1 Q2 Q3

Agenda Item 7

35



2.3    Since start of new mandates (July/August 2000) 
The Authority appointed the three Fund Managers and gave them new 
mandates in 2000. Since that time they have again exceeded their 
benchmarks, the industry average and the 7 day rate. Overall returns 
are very similar but as at December 2005, CDCM was the best 
performing of the three Managers. 

 
        
3.      PERFORMANCE AGAINST BUDGET IN 2005/6 
 
3.1   The estimated outturn of investment interest is £572k more than in the 

budget mainly due to the deferral of capital schemes.  All the funds are 
expected to achieve the 5% return assumed in the budget.  

 
4.      RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1   It is recommended that Cabinet note this report. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Working papers in Financial Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Steve Couper – Head of Financial Services    Tel. 01480 388103 
 

 
 
 

36



ANNEX A 
 

PERFORMANCE FOR THE QUARTER  OCTOBER 2005 - DECEMBER  2005 
Variation from  Performance 

 
% 

HDC 
Benchmark 

% 

Industry 
Average 

% 
HDC Benchmark 

% 
Industry average 

% 
Investec 1.16 1.13 1.13 +0.03 +0.03 
Alliance 1.20 1.13 1.13 +0.07 +0.07 
CDCM 1.23 1.14 1.13 +0.09 +0.10 

 
 

PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2005 – DECEMBER 2005 
Variation from  Performance 

 
% 

HDC 
Benchmark 

% 

Industry 
Average 

% 
HDC Benchmark 

% 
Industry average 

% 
Investec 3.96 3.88* 3.68 +0.08 +0.28 
Alliance 3.88 3.88* 3.68 0.0 +0.20 
CDCM 3.75 3.49** 3.68 +0.26 +0.07 

 
 

CUMULATIVE PERFORMANCE SINCE JULY 2000 
Variation from  Performance 

 
% 

HDC 
Benchmark 

% 

Industry 
Average 

% 
HDC Benchmark 

% 
Industry average 

% 
Investec 30.74 30.19 28.57 +0.55 +2.17 
Alliance # 30.63 29.58 27.92 +1.05 +2.71 
CDCM 30.83 27.48 28.57 +3.35 +2.26 

 
 
#   The mandate with Alliance Capital started in August 2000 
*   Composite of 60% Merrill Lynch 3 month LIBID (London Inter-Bank Bid 

Rate) and 40% ML 0-5yr Gilt Index.  
**  3 month LIBID 

 

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
  
CABINET                                                                           23 FEBRUARY 2006 

 
HIGHWAYS AGENCY 2006 

 
(Report by Head of Environment & Transport) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council undertook certain highways maintenance functions, on 

behalf of the Cambridgeshire County Council, from 1974 until 
31 March 2005.  These functions were performed under the terms of 
an agency agreement (the ‘Highways Agency’) as provided for in the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 
1.2 The full Highways Agency terminated in March 2005 and the 

employees involved in the running of the highways maintenance 
contract were transferred to the County Council. 

 
1.3 Other work carried out under the Highways Agency was performed by 

the Operations Division and included grass cutting on Highway verge 
and weed control on kerbed roads.  Environment & Transport’s 
engineering team undertook design work on jointly funded schemes.   

 
1.4 The County Council paid for the equivalent of the cutting of highway 

verges 4 times each year in the town areas included in the Highways 
Agency. This Council cuts its own grass areas about 10-11 times 
each year and so the Council agreed to enhance the standard of 
service by funding the extra frequency of highway verge grass cutting 
so that it was harmonised with that of adjoining public open spaces.  
Since these areas generally abut each other, differing standards will 
appear very obvious and complaints would have been received. 

 
1.5 This Council also puts extra funds into weed spraying.  The County 

Council pays for the cleansing of kerbed channels on all roads in the 
district. However since there are problems from weeds growing in the 
kerbline and across the pavement which gives the impression of 
uncleansed roads, this Council agreed to enhance this to give better 
treatment to the whole paved and kerbed area.  This policy has been 
developed over the last 4-5 years. 

 
2. FUTURE AGENCY WORK 
 
2.1 At their meeting on 14 July 2004, Cabinet agreed to the termination of 

the existing highway agency agreement and also resolved to: 
 

(e) “support the proposal to develop a co-ordinated ‘street-
scene’ approach to the management of complementary 
services affecting public areas; and 

(f) authorise the Director of Operational Services, in 
consultation with the Executive Councillor responsible 
for Planning Strategy, to seek to secure a new 
agreement with the County Council for the discharge of 
the functions listed at paragraph 6.2 of the report and 

Agenda Item 8

39



to report the outcome of the negotiations to a future 
meeting of the Cabinet.” 

 
2.2 Paragraph 6.2 of the previous report stated: 
 
 “There are, however, a range of highways related activities that 

could be undertaken by the District Council that would benefit 
local communities and contribute to the development of a co-
ordinated ‘street-scene’ service.  These are – 

 
• design of environmental improvements within the 

highway 
• design of jointly funded transport schemes, such as 

cycleways 
• management of on-street parking 
• verge maintenance  
• weed spraying 
• bus shelters 
• licensing of pavement cafes 
• sign washing 
• removal of fly posting and A-boards” 

 
2.3 It was not possible before the termination of the agreement in April 

2005 to conclude a comprehensive agreement for 2005/06 and it was 
agreed therefore, that the Council would continue to deliver all of the 
items listed in 2.2, except sign washing and removal of fly posters 
and A boards, which had not been carried out previously, until an 
alternative agreement was made. The budget for the services 
provided by the County Council was as the previous year with the 
agreed inflation increase. 

 
2.4 Negotiations have been taking place with the County Council 

regarding the provision of the above services for future years. 
 
3. PROGRESS ON THE NEGOTIATIONS 
 
3.1 The County Council is presently out to tender for a comprehensive 

county-wide Highway Services contract which will include all highway 
maintenance, design of schemes and their construction. This contract 
is due to start in September 2006.  The County Council, however, is 
still prepared to enter into a separate agency with this Council for the 
majority of the work listed in paragraph 2.2 above. 

 
3.2 The County Council has a very small budget for the washing of signs 

and has not resolved its policy on A Boards in town centres. It is 
therefore not proposed to take on this work.  The removal of illegal 
signs and graffiti is currently funded by the district and undertaken by 
the Operations Division. 

 
3.3 The County Council has been paying the District Council for 

maintaining their verges on the basis of 4 cuts per year.  Where this 
Council has been cutting more frequently to match the frequency 
given to our own land, the District Council has been paying for the 
difference.   

 
3.4 The District Council has only been cutting the highway verges in the 

old Highways Agency areas, i.e. the five town areas. The Council has 

40



the option of taking on the responsibility for the grass cutting of the 
remainder of the district.  At present this is carried out by Parish 
Councils, the County Council or contractors. However to take on the 
management of this work will mean running a mixture of contracts 
with different contractors and agents and with the reduction to four 
cuts a year in these non-agency areas could result in complaints for a 
reduction in service. The majority of our public open space is within 
the town areas. It is not considered that it is beneficial to take on this 
extra work. 

 
3.5 The County are prepared for the District to continue with the other 

items as the previous agreement. 
 
 
4.0 PROPOSED FUTURE AGENCY 
 
4.1 It is proposed that the following work be included in the future agency 

agreement: 
• the right to design and construct environmental 

improvements within the highway 
• design of jointly funded transport schemes, such as 

cycleways 
• management of on-street parking 
• verge maintenance  
• weed spraying 
• bus shelters and other street furniture 
• licensing of pavement cafes 

 
4.2 It is proposed that this agency should run for an initial for an initial 

period of three years with the option to renew. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The financial implications of the above proposals are: 
5.2  
 

Design This is funded direct from the capital 
schemes and has no extra revenue 
implication 
 

On-street parking This is covered by the income from the 
parking.  Any excess income has to be 
spent on car parking matters. 
 

Verge maintenance 
in original agency 
district 

At present we receive £42k contribution from 
the County Council for this work.  There is 
an existing budget to cover the costs of 
meeting our higher standards of extra cuts. 
 

Weed spraying At present we receive £35k contribution from 
the County Council for spraying the 
channels. There is an existing budget to 
cover the extra costs of meeting our higher 
standards by spraying and cleansing the 
whole footpath areas.  
 

Bus shelters and This is covered by existing budgets 

41



other street furniture 
 
Licensing of 
pavement cafes 
 

This is covered by existing budgets 

 
 
6. CONCLUSION 
 
6.1 The Highways Agency for the road maintenance in the town areas 

was terminated on 1st April 2005.  The Cabinet in July 2004 agreed to 
continue certain highways related services after this date subject to a 
new agreement being negotiated. 

 
6.2 As these negotiations were not concluded, the Council has been 

carrying out these services on the basis of the previous agreement.  
There is now an understanding with the County Council regarding the 
work that could be included in a new agreement. 

 
   This is – 

• design of environmental improvements within the 
highway 

• design of jointly funded transport schemes, such as 
cycleways 

• management of on-street parking 
• verge maintenance of the original highways agency 

area 
• weed spraying and cleansing of kerbed footways. 
• bus shelters 
• licensing of pavement cafes 

 
6.3 If Cabinet approve the principle of the agreement, the new contract 

will be entered into for 1st April 2006 for an initial period of three years 
with the option to renew. 

 
7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet – 
 

(a) authorise the Director of Operational Services, 
after consultation with the Executive Councillor for 
Environment & Transport to secure a new three 
year agreement with the County Council for the 
discharge of the functions listed at paragraph 6.2 
of this report  

 
(b) agree that the existing budgets remain for the work 

presently carried out on Highways Agency matters. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Highways Agency Agreement 
 
Contact Officer: Mr C Allen, Project and Assets Manager 
  01480 388380 
 

42



 
CABINET                           23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 

CONCESSIONARY FARES 
(Report by Head of Environment & Transport) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on current discussions 

relating to the introduction of the new Concessionary Fares regime on 
1st April 2006. 

 
1.2 This follows the Cabinet resolution on 24th November 2005 that a 

statutory minimum concessionary fare scheme for an interim 12-
month period be adopted by the Council 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The previous report to Cabinet outlined the Government plans to 

move to a free travel scheme from April 2006. Towards the end of 
November the Department for Transport (DfT) finally published 
guidance and timescales for the implementation of the new scheme. 
This outlines the statutory obligations that concessionary fares 
authorities have to meet.  The first timescale was to announce by 1st 
December 2005, that the statutory minimum requirement would be 
met, which was approved by Cabinet on 24th November 2005. 

 
2.2 The previous report also outlined a range of issues that would need to 

be resolved to meet the new statutory requirements by April 2006, 
which included; 

 
• The scope of the free scheme i.e. district or countywide scheme 
• Funding levels likely to be forthcoming from Government 
• Scheme administration 
• New generation factor 
• Operator reimbursement  
• Widening of the eligibility criteria as part of Council’s accessibility 

agenda 
 
3. THE NEW SCHEME  
 
3.1 The Transport Act 2000 placed the statutory duty on District/City 

authorities to administer the half-fare regime currently in operation on 
all single and return journeys.  The national minimum scheme applies 
to anyone over 60 years of age and for those with qualifying 
disabilities and operates between 09.30 and 23.00.  However the 
current countywide scheme exceeds the statutory minimum by 
providing (a) the additional benefit of free travel for those who are 

Agenda Item 9

43



registered blind or partially sighted and (b) no time restriction on the 
use of the scheme. 

 
3.2 The statutory minimum requirements of new scheme will permit free 

travel for those eligible within district boundaries only on all registered 
bus services outside the morning peak i.e. after 09.30.  Legislation 
also allows the scheme use to be restricted to Mondays to Fridays. 

 
3.3 Legislation also allows Operators to claim additional costs arising 

from operating the new scheme.  This would almost certainly be by 
any need to provide extra capacity as a result of any demand created. 
It is possible that this could probably be avoided by introducing the 
time restriction. 

 
3.4 Authorities will be permitted to consider additions to the statutory 

minimum i.e. to operate a scheme over a wider area, extending 
eligibility and permitting use before 09.30.   

 
3.5 Following agreement to run the minimum statutory requirement during 

2006/07, meetings have been held with Operators since December 
last year and it has been agreed that reimbursement during 2006/07 
will begin to be made on based on actual journeys undertaken.  From 
April 2007, in line with Central Government guidance, a complete 
revenue-forgone system will be introduced where payment will be fully 
based on actual journeys undertaken.  This will allow authorities to 
collect data throughout 2006/07 to enable them to budget accordingly 
based on how much the scheme actually costs. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Consultant working on behalf of the partners in the scheme, 

together with the County Council, has produced an estimate of 
potential costs of the various options available based on current 
available data. It must be accepted that the figures are based on a 
number of assumptions that mean the figures are only 
illustrative.Table 1 below outlines the impact on Huntingdonshire: 

 
Table 1 
 
Option Possible cost range

£000 
1) Statutory scheme 
Travel after 9.30am 
No subsidy outside District boundary 

450 to 490 

2) Statutory scheme plus part subsidy for travel 
within other Cambridgeshire Districts 
Travel after 9.30am 
Traveller pays flat fare of £1.75 for travel going 
outside District 
No subsidy on Cambridge Park and Ride 

560 to 600 

44



3) Free Countywide Scheme 
Travel after 9.30am 
No payments for travel within County 
No subsidy on Cambridge Park and Ride 

645 to 690 

 
4.2 Without additional funding the budget for 2006/07 would have been 

£213k. The current MTP proposes an increase of £232k giving a total 
available sum of £445k. 

 
4.3 The Government consider that we have received £503k in extra grant 

relating to Concessionary Fares which if added to our previous 
spending would give £716k. Based on the Council’s financial strategy 
any increase over £445k will require additional savings during the 
strategy period. 

 
5. THE COUNTYWIDE POSITION 
 
5.1 Discussions have been on-going between all the authorities within 

Cambridgeshire to try to agree a common position on what is likely to 
be the most favourable scheme and one that each Authority can afford 
to fund. The current indicative position is outlined in Table 2 as follows; 

 
TABLE 2 
 
Statutory scheme plus part 
subsidy for travel within other 
Cambridgeshire Districts 
 

Huntingdonshire 
South Cambridgeshire 
East Cambridgeshire 

Free Countywide Scheme 
 

Peterborough City 
Cambridge City 
(City costs do not vary significantly 
between options as they have much less 
out of district travel) 

 
Fenland have indicated that they are prepared to go with the majority view. 
 
5.2 These discussions have included issues such as the need for individual 

Council’s to have the ability to offer special (lower) flat fare rates where 
they have a town close to a neighbouring City. e.g. Yaxley to 
Peterborough or are close to a District boundary e.g. Fenstanton to 
Cambridge. Lower rates would need to be set so that travel in these 
circumstances would be no more than under present scheme.  

 
5.3 The figures exclude subsidy to towns outside Cambridgeshire e.g. if 

subsidy were to be continued between St. Neots and Bedford there 
would be an increased cost to be funded. Table 3 below indicates 
some typical scenarios; 

 
 
 

45



TABLE 3 
 
Settlement Destination Current Fare Half- Fare Net. Position 

(£1.75 flat fare)
Fenstanton Cambridge £3.15 return £1.57 £0.18 worse-off 
St. Ives Cambridge £3.50 return £1.75 No difference 
Huntingdon Cambridge £4.85 £2.43 £0.68 better-off 
Yaxley Peterborough £2.70 day rider £1.35 £0.40 worse-off 
 
5.4 All options exclude subsidy on Cambridge Park and Ride. If subsidy 

were to be continued there would be a further increased cost. 
Exceptions can be made to the after 9.30am limit for villages where 
this would have a major impact due to infrequent services, such as 
one service per day before the qualifying period. 

 
5.5 It would be extremely difficult to have a mixed scheme countywide in 

the first year so if some Council’s are currently unable to support a 
free County-wide scheme during 2006/07, then it is likely that a 
Statutory scheme, plus part subsidy outside the District, would have 
to be recommended. 

 
5.6 For the subsequent year(s) 2007/08 and beyond, the level of funding 

is more difficult to assess at this time, particularly when moving to a 
revenue-forgone based system. This will need to be based on 
detailed patronage and monitoring data from Operators during 
2006/07 on which to base future budgets. The financial implications of 
widening the eligibility criteria based on research associated with the 
current Rural Access Study and Accessibility Action Plans would also 
need to be considered. 

 
5. COMMUNITY TRANSPORT 
 
5.1 Certain community transport journeys, primarily day-to-day service 

journeys to Market Towns, are currently reimbursed at half-fare level 
directly to operators.  There is no statutory duty to include these 
schemes for either free travel or the current half-fare level, but there is 
some concern that to exclude them may undermine the operations in 
terms of people switching to registered bus services.  

 
5.2 There is also the possibility that the Councils within Cambridgeshire 

may be vulnerable to legal challenge on the grounds of discrimination 
from pass holders who do not have access to conventional bus 
services because of their age, disability or remoteness from the bus 
network.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

46



6. RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is  
 

  (i) recommended that Cabinet approve the provision of Option 2, 
Table 1 for a Statutory scheme plus part subsidy for travel within 
other Cambridgeshire City/District areas provided that all City & 
District Council’s within Cambridgeshire make the same 
undertaking ; and 

 
(ii) that free travel on Community Transport services is made 
available to pass holders for services which access Market 
Towns within Huntingdonshire 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Concessionary Fares Study – Briefing Paper August 2005 
Concessionary Fares – Improving Rural Access Study (Steer Davies Gleave. 
Final Report August 2005 
Report to Cabinet, 15th September 2005 – Consultation on Changes to the 
way the Government provides financial support to Local Authorities 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Concessionary Fares Scheme – 
Consultant’s Initial Reports 
Report to Cabinet 24th November 2005 – Concessionary Fares 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Stuart Bell – Team Leader Transportation 

  01480 388387 
 

 
 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

CABINET 23rd FEBRUARY 2006 
 

CAR PARKING ORDER – OAK DRIVE, HUNTINGDON 
(Report by the Head of Environment & Transport) 

 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The redevelopment of Sapley Square has provided a new health centre / PCT offices 

and new shops with a community centre above.  This council owns all the buildings 
and the associated public parking between the buildings. 

 
1.2 To control the parking on this site a car parking order needs to be made.  This will be 

the same as those in force in respect of the council’s other free off-street car parks e.g. 
Riverside, Huntingdon. The process for this is prescribed by statute and requires draft 
orders to be advertised and any objections to be considered by the relevant Council. 
This report requests authority to advertise for this order. 

 
 
2. CAR PARKING ORDER 
 
2.1 The proposal is that there will be free parking for a maximum of two hours in the car 

park between the two buildings, with no return within one hour. This will be controlled 
by the issuing of excess charge notices as necessary.   The other car parks provided 
for the health centre are for staff parking and cannot be covered by a parking order. 

 
2.2 The order will also set requirements and restrictions for the use of the car park, such 

as safe parking, no selling from cars and no sleeping in cars.  This will be controlled by 
the issuing of penalty notices. 

  
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Cabinet are recommended to 
 

(a) approve the advertisement of new car parking orders in respect of Oak 
Drive off-street car park 

 
   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:- 
 
1. Environment and Transport files. 

 
Contact Officer: Chris Allen, Project and Assets Manager 
   01480 388380 
 

Agenda Item 10

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

CABINET 24 FEBRUARY 2006  
 

SMALL SCALE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS 
(Report by Head of Environment & Transport) 

 
 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 This paper reports on the small scale environmental improvement 

schemes to be completed by March 2006, and proposes a 
programme of schemes for 2006/07.   

 
 
2. SELECTION OF SCHEMES 
 
2.1 A budget of £92k (gross) is included in 2006/07 for “Small Scale 

Environmental Improvements”. To qualify for funding from this budget 
a scheme must also attract a minimum of 25% funding from an 
outside source, such as Parish or Town Council, or Landfill Tax 
Credit. 

 
2.2 Cabinet agreed the criteria for the prioritisation of the schemes in 

2002/03 and this has been applied to the selection of schemes for 
2006/07. 

 
2.3 Town and Parish Councils were asked in October to submit schemes 

for consideration in this year’s programme. 
 
 
 
3. 2005/06 SCHEMES 
 
3.1 The schemes approved in the 2005/6 programme were as follows: 
 
 Location          Position 
 

Huntingdon – Town Boundary signs  Complete 
Huntingdon, High Street – Railings  Awaiting tenders 
Bluntisham – Rebuild church wall  Complete 
Somersham – Rebuild wall leading to Church Complete 
Offord D’Arcy – New Conservation bus shelter Complete 
St Neots, Berkeley Road – Upgrade area Complete 
Medway Centre – Footpath   Complete 
 

 
4. FUTURE SCHEMES 
 
4.1 Following submissions from Town and Parish Councils schemes have 

been assessed (Annex 1) and the highest scoring schemes up to the 
approved budget (based on preliminary estimates) for 2006/07 are 
listed below:- 

 

Agenda Item 11

51



 
  Net 

£k 
Gross 

£k 
1) Ramsey TC – Railings around war 

memorial 
15 19 

2) Ramsey TC – Repairs to church 
wall 

20 25 

3) St Ives TC – Improvements area of 
land to Bridge St  

18 23 

4) Holme PC – Repairs to church wall 
 

3 4 

5) Warboys PC – Repairs to Jubilee 
Clock 

2 3 

6) Catworth PCC – Church wall 
repairs 

14 18 

 
Total

 
72 

 
92 

   
 
5. CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1 The small scale environmental improvement funding has enabled 

minor improvements to be carried out in many villages and locations. 
 
5.2 There is great interest from town and parish councils in promoting 

future schemes and the appraisal process has now been shown to 
work satisfactorily. 

 
5.3 Approval is sought for those schemes with shown in paragraph 4.1 

above.  In the event that these cannot proceed for any reason during 
2006/07 the next schemes in the order of priority will be carried out. 

 Annex 2 identifies the budget allocated for these schemes and is the 
Release of Funds form. 

 
 
6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
6.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 
  
 i) note the schemes committed/completed to date  
 ii) approve, for completion during 2006/07, the schemes at 

paragraph 4.1 above and the release of funds from the MTP to 
facilitate this. 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Environment & Transport File T7 
 
 
Contact Officer: C J Allen, Project and Assets Manager 
  (01480) 388380 

52



 
A

nn
ex

 2
  

A
N

N
EX

 1
 

 
Sm

al
l S

ca
le

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 –
 D

is
tr

ic
t W

id
e 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
     R

e
f

A
p

p
lic

a
n

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

HDC Contribution

% Contribution

S
c

o
re

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
1

A
lc

o
n

b
u

ry
 P

C
A

lc
o

n
b

u
ry

 l
o

w
 l

e
v

e
l 

lig
h

ti
n

g
2

2
5

1
0

2
R

a
m

s
e

y
 T

C
R

a
ili

n
g

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 w
a

r 
m

e
m

o
ri

a
l

1
5

2
5

1
2

3
R

a
m

e
s

y
 T

C
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
3

2
5

1
0

4
R

a
m

s
e

y
 T

C
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 b

o
a

rd
s

4
2

5
9

5
R

a
m

s
e

y
 T

C
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 t

o
 c

h
u

rc
h

 w
a

ll
2

0
2

5
1

3
6

H
o

ly
w

e
ll 

P
C

W
ill

o
w

 p
o

lla
rd

in
g

1
2

5
7

7
S

t 
Iv

e
s

 T
C

B
ri

d
g

e
 S

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

1
5

2
5

1
4

8
A

lw
a

lt
o

n
 P

C
C

e
m

e
te

ry
 g

a
te

s
2

2
5

1
4

9
W

y
to

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
ill

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 A
s

s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
W

a
ll 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 a

c
c

e
s

s
4

2
5

8
1

0
U

p
to

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

p
p

in
g

fi
e

ld
 P

C
V

ill
a

g
e

 p
o

n
d

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

1
2

5
8

1
1

H
o

lm
e

 P
C

R
e

p
a

ir
s

 t
o

 c
h

u
rc

h
 w

a
ll

3
2

5
1

2
1

2
W

a
rb

o
y

s
 P

C
J

u
b

ile
e

 c
lo

c
k

 t
o

w
e

r 
re

p
a

ir
s

2
2

5
1

3
1

3
S

o
m

e
rs

h
a

m
 P

C
R

e
s

to
re

 a
n

c
ia

n
t 

w
a

ll
2

0
2

5
1

1
1

4
B

ra
m

p
to

n
 P

C
F

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
a

te
w

a
y

 r
e

p
a

ir
s

2
5

0
9

1
5

B
ra

m
p

to
n

 P
C

F
lo

o
d

lig
h

t 
o

b
ili

s
k

1
5

0
1

0
1

6
W

a
re

s
le

y
 P

C
V

ill
a

g
e

 p
o

n
d

 r
e

p
a

ir
s

5
2

5
1

1
1

7
R

a
m

s
e

y
 R

u
ra

l 
M

u
s

e
u

m
C

o
tt

a
g

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
3

0
2

5
9

1
8

R
a

m
s

e
y

 A
re

a
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
T

o
u

ri
s

m
 f

in
g

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

1
2

5
1

0
1

9
A

b
b

o
tt

s
 R

ip
to

n
 P

C
V

ill
a

g
e

 f
lo

w
e

r 
tr

o
u

g
h

s
1

2
5

8
2

0
E

a
ri

th
 P

C
F

e
n

c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 p

o
n

d
8

2
5

8
2

1
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

 T
C

F
in

g
e

r 
p

o
s

t 
s

ig
n

s
1

2
5

8
2

2
S

t 
Iv

e
s

 T
C

P
ili

n
g

 w
o

rk
s

2
0

2
5

7
2

3
S

t 
Iv

e
s

 T
C

F
lo

w
e

rb
e

d
 q

u
a

d
ra

n
t

2
2

5
8

2
4

C
a

tw
o

rt
h

 V
ill

a
g

e
 H

a
ll 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
R

e
n

o
v

a
te

 b
ri

c
k

 w
a

ll
2

2
5

1
0

2
5

C
a

tw
o

rt
h

 P
C

C
h

u
rc

h
 w

a
ll 

re
p

a
ir

s
1

4
2

5
1

2
2

6
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

 T
C

F
lo

w
e

r 
tr

o
u

g
h

s
7

2
5

1
0

53



A
N

N
EX

 2
 –

 R
EL

EA
SE

 O
F 

FU
N

D
S 

R
EQ

U
ES

T 
 Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/ 
20

10
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/ 
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

12
 

15
 

20
 

24
 

28
 

31
 

84
 

86
 

72
 

73
 

73
 

73
 

A
lre

ad
y 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

12
 

15
 

15
 

15
 

15
 

15
 

82
 

82
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

5 
5 

5 
5 

 
 

72
 

 
 

 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Th
e 

S
m

al
l S

ca
le

 S
ch

em
e 

is
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f s
ev

er
al

 d
iff

er
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t. 

 T
he

se
 a

re
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 s

ch
em

es
 w

ith
 T

ow
n 

or
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
.  

Th
e 

pa
ris

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 e
ar

ly
 a

pp
ro

va
l b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

th
is

 w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

is
 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r. 
A

 re
po

rt 
is

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 C

ab
in

et
 fo

r t
he

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f n

ex
t y

ea
rs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 s
ch

em
es

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
.  

E
ar

ly
 a

pp
ro

va
l i

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 c

om
m

it 
th

is
 m

on
ey

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

P
ar

is
h 

an
d 

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
ei

r c
om

m
itm

en
ts

.. 
 R

el
ea

se
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
£7

2k
 is

 s
ou

gh
t s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t c
an

 s
ta

rt 
no

w
 a

nd
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

.  
 

54



 
 
 
  
 

CABINET 23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 

PLANNING-GAIN SUPPLEMENT: A CONSULTATION 
 

Report by Planning Policy Manager 
 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Government in 2003 commissioned Kate Barker of the Bank of 

England to produce an independent review of housing supply.  In 
response HM Treasury have produced this consultation and are 
seeking views upon it by the 27th February.  The Cabinet is asked to 
note the report and endorse the comments made. 

 
 
2. SUPPORTING/BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 Planning Gain Supplement (PGS) is a proposed new tax, to be levied 

by central government on land that has the benefit of planning 
permission.  It builds on Kate Parker’s original recommendation that 
Government should capture a portion of land value uplift arising from 
the planning process.  The new tax would be used in order to fund a 
range of infrastructure that is needed to support her independent 
review of ways to increase the housing supply. 

 
2.2 Planning Gain Supplement would largely replace the S106 

contributions for infrastructure funding currently secured by local 
authorities.  The Government wishes the new tax to be seen as a 
‘fair, efficient and transparent levy’ (foreword of consultation 
document). 

 
 
3.0   FEATURES OF THE PROPOSED PGS 
 

Calculation and Payment 
  
3.1 The basis for calculating PGS would be the ‘planning gain’ i.e. the 

difference (the uplift) between the land value with full planning 
permission and the land value in its undeveloped or existing use.  The 
value with planning permission would be determined by the nature of 
the development (residential, commercial or mixed use), location, 
density and market conditions.  A chargeable person is identified, 
who will be liable for the PGS, through a new statutory Development 
Start Notice. 

 
3.2   The PGS would be calculated at the time that full planning permission 

is granted or at determination of each stage of reserved matters (of 

Agenda Item 12

55



which there can be many), although it is proposed that PGS would 
not be collected until commencement of each stage of development.  
This would make for a very fragmented payment system. 

 
3.3 The percentage likely to be payable is not given in the document, 

although it is suggested that a lower rate may be introduced for brown 
field land, and that there could be a threshold below which PGS 
would not be payable, but this would be very low.  There is no 
intention to levy PGS on home improvements. 

 
3.4 Payment of PGS it is proposed, would be at the commencement of 

development by the developer, who would then be most likely to pass 
the charge onto the landowner.  

 
 Implications for S106 Planning Obligations 
 
3.5 The introduction of a PGS would be accompanied by a scaled down 

planning obligations system, limiting planning obligations to ‘those 
matters that need to be addressed in order for the environment of the 
development site itself to be sustainable, safe, of high quality and 
accessible, and the provision of affordable housing.’  The analysis 
provided by Government is as follows; 

 
 

 
 
3.6 The Government proposes to make this range a defined statutory list. 

 
Allocations of PGS Revenues 

 
3.7 If PGS is implemented then the Government will commit to the 

following key principles; 
 

• A significant majority of PGS revenues will be recycled to the 
local level for local priorities, and will ensure that local 
government overall will receive more funding through PGS than 
was raised through S106. 

 

        Included in new scope of 
Planning Obligations 

 
 

Affordable housing  
On-site landscaping 
On-site roads & traffic calming 
Access road 
Open space 
Mix of uses 
Mix of housing types 
Flood defence 
Street lighting 
Phasing & timing of development 
Landscaping 
Design coding 
Environmental improvements 
Operational effectiveness 

Outside scope of new 
Planning Obligations 
 
 
Education provision 
Health provision 
Community centre 
Bus service 
Fire station 
Employment & training 
Labour initiatives 
Town centre management 
Cultural facilities 
Leisure facilities 

56



• PGS revenues will be dedicated to financing additional 
investment in the local and strategic infrastructure necessary to 
support growth.  The government anticipates that an 
overwhelming majority of PGS funds will be recycled within the 
region from which they derived. 

 
3.8 The first bullet point is of significant concern.  The level of certainty 

that the funding will be greater than that already coming through S106 
needs to be further explained.  

 
3.9 The government is consulting on the mechanisms for allocating PGS 

revenues to the local level.  The 2 options are as follows; 
 

Option 1.  To distribute PGS revenues to the local level as grants in 
direct proportion to the revenues raised. 

Option 2.  To recycle revenues back to the local level as grants on 
the basis of a formula specifically connected to PGS revenues, which 
acted as a proxy for need.  This would inevitably be more complicated 
and less transparent to local developers and communities, but would 
benefit communities delivering housing in areas of low land values. 

 
3.10 The consultation paper then goes on to add that a significant 

proportion of PGS revenue would be used to deliver strategic regional 
infrastructure.  The government proposes this could be done through 
an expanded and revised Community Infrastructure Fund (CIF), and 
is seeking views on the appropriate geographic coverage and 
eligibility criteria.  Additional CIF funds are required in any case to 
assist in making good the existing shortfall and the PGS funds should 
be spent only on the services where planning obligations were 
previously applicable.  What is not clear from the PGS consultation 
document is how CIF will provide funding for the strategic 
infrastructure requirements.  

 
3.11 Finally as part of the 2007 Comprehensive Spending Review, a 

crosscutting review to determine the social, transport and 
environmental infrastructure implications of housing growth will take 
place. 

 
 
4. IMPLICATIONS FOR HDC 
 
4.1 There are concerns regarding the issue of how and what level of 

funding will be returned to the local area.  How much will end up in a 
‘central pot’ and be re-distributed nationally?  Funding for specific 
purposes should be ringed fenced and not put into a ‘central pot’.  

 
4.2 What is meant by the local area as there is a contradiction in the text 

when in the same paragraph it states that an overwhelming majority 
of PGS funds will be recycled within the region from which they 
derive.  

 
4.3 There is also a need for further explanation as to how the funds 

earmarked for strategic infrastructure will be handed back to local 
authorities.  A development in our district may well end up in paying 
for infrastructure in Cambridge.  

 

57



4.4 Local Authorities may have to make bids for the money taken for 
strategic purposes.  Will we be any more successful than in the past 
when we have applied for resources through the Community 
Infrastructure Fund? 

 
4.5 There is a concern that the ability to negotiate for affordable housing 

will be curtailed as the levy will top slice the development gain from a 
site leaving a smaller amount to pay for items on the more local list.  

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
5.1 That members note the contents of the report and endorse the 

comments in section 4 above. 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Planning-gain Supplement: a consultation  December 2005 ( HM Treasury) 
 
 
Contact Officer: Richard Probyn 
     01480 388430 

 
 

58



 
 
  
 

CABINET 23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 

CONSULTATION ON PLANNING POLICY STATEMENTS 
(PPS) 

 
Report by  

Planning Policy Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 As part of the ongoing process of reviewing national policy guidance 

the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) has published two 
consultation papers on Housing (PPS3) and Development and Flood 
Risk (PPS25).  Comments are sought by 28th February 2006.  The 
cabinet is being asked to endorse the comments as set in the report. 

 
2. PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT 3: Housing 
 
2.1 This follows earlier consultations which proposed changes to the 

existing national guidance for housing PPG3 (published in 2000).  
The government’s key objective is ‘to ensure that everyone has the 
opportunity of living in a decent home, which they can afford, in a 
community where they want to live.’  To achieve this government is 
seeking a number of objectives:- 

 
A) ensure that a wide range of housing types is available for both 

affordable and market housing to meet the needs of all members of 
the community  

 
B) deliver a better balance between housing demand and supply in 

every housing market and to improve affordability where necessary 
and  

 
C) create sustainable, inclusive, mixed communities in all areas.  

Developments should be attractive safe and designed and built to a 
high quality.  They should be located in areas with good access to 
jobs, key services and infrastructure. 

 
2.2 Draft PPS3 requires Regional Planning Bodies through the Regional 

Spatial Strategy to determine the level and distribution of housing, 
including affordable housing in the Region.  In addition there is a 
requirement to identify sub-regional housing market areas for which 
the release of land may be varied, dependant upon demand for 
housing. 

 
 

Agenda Item 13

59



2.3 In determining the level of housing provision and its distribution, 
Regional Planning Bodies will need to consider a range of factors 
including:- 

 
• sub-regional housing market assessments 
• sub-regional land availability assessments 
• advice from the proposed National Advice Unit on the impact of the 

proposals for affordability in the region 
• environmental, social and economic implications of development 
• the implications of development for existing and proposed 

infrastructure 
 

2.4 There is a clear steer from Government regarding the need to 
consider market considerations in setting the level of housing 
provision.  For example housing market assessments will need to 
assess both the need and demand for housing within an area.  The 
Government has proposed in accompanying Draft Guidance that 
housing market assessments should be prepared by a Partnership, 
which would include the Regional Planning Body, Local Authorities, 
Registered Social Landlords and County Councils.  Housing land 
availability assessments will need to determine both the level of land 
available for housing and the level of housing provision.  The 
assessments are expected to examine all land that might potentially 
be made available for house building. 

 
2.5 Draft PPS3 identifies the need to increase the level of housing supply 

in areas where demand is high, by exploring opportunities for 
development including, new freestanding settlements and major 
urban extensions.  Cambridgeshire is located within one of the 
Government’s Growth Areas as identified in the Sustainable 
Communities Plan (published in 2003) in which Government is 
seeking an increase in the level of house building. 

 
2.6 The draft PPS3 then identifies what role the LDFs have in allocating 

land.  The framework must contain a housing trajectory that provides 
for a 5 year supply of land that is available, suitable and viable.  The 
development on brownfield land in preference to greenfield land is still 
considered to be a priority in the new statement.  Guidance is given 
on densities appropriate to various locations and car parking 
standards should reflect local circumstances, recognising that people 
still want to own cars.  The PPS suggests that we should have regard 
to studies that form part of the sub regional market assessment to 
determine mix of households.  The Statement provides guidance on 
affordable housing thresholds and the approach to affordable housing 
and private housing in rural areas.  Designing for quality and greening 
the residential environment are contained in further sections of the 
document.  Finally the section on managing delivery and 
development identifies some circumstances where sites not allocated 
for development can be brought forward. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



3. COMMENTS ON PPS 3 
 
3.1 These are based on the questions posed by ODPM at the back of the 

document. 
 

Question 1  Do the policies set out in draft deliver the 
Government’s housing objectives? 

 
• Yes, with reservations.  There is a general lack of detail in the draft 

PPS3 and the publication of companion guides may have helped in 
understanding the document.  The document is confusing, contains 
contradictions and its message is not as strong as in previous draft 
material e.g. Sustainable Communities leading up to this publication. 

 
• It appears to be too market driven and in some statements 

contradicts the procedures that are necessary to carry out for the 
statutory planning process.  The reference to the sequential test 
contained in PPG3 has disappeared and with the drive for more 
houses the market appears to be influential in determining where 
houses are built.  This could result in development in unsustainable 
locations and scarce infrastructure diverted away from where it is 
most needed. 

 
• Reducing affordable housing thresholds is welcomed and will assist 

but it is questionable whether an increase in housing supply will help 
to solve affordability.  There is still no certainty from Government 
about where the money will come from to fund the affordable 
element. 

 
• PPS3 doesn’t address the fundamental problem of infrastructure 

deficit.  There needs to be a radical Government review so that 
planning and infrastructure funding come hand in hand.  PPS3 is to 
be implemented now whilst the guidance in the draft Planning Gain 
Supplement will not be implemented until at least 2008. 

 
Question 2  Are the arrangements for delivering PPS3 clearly set 
out in relation to:    
a) Working in sub regional housing market  
b) Determining the regional level of housing provision and its 
distribution  
c) Allocating and releasing land for housing  
d) making the efficient use of land  
e) planning for mixed communities  
f)  planning for rural housing  
g) designing for quality  
h) greening the residential environmental  
i)  managing delivery and development  

 
a) There are many different definitions of sub-regions, how are they to 
be reconciled and market areas defined?  Sub-regional housing 
market areas are likely to create complications where they cross 
Local Authority boundaries (e.g. Peterborough/E. Midlands & EOE).  
How is this going to work?  Further guidance is needed on defining 
relationships between areas as each are defined for different 
purposes eg.  housing/planning/economic. 

 

61



b) PPS3 does not show how development industry and local 
authorities can have a constructive dialogue to influence affordability 
at the regional level.  It is not clear how the National Advice Unit will 
help in this debate.  
 
c) The 5-year allocation of supply of housing is very prescriptive and 
may result in over supply in areas such as Huntingdonshire.  A 15-
year plan provision is a good idea.  
 
d) It is not clear whether Local Planning Authorities can count 
windfalls in their housing trajectories but it is important to build them 
into the assumptions as they are a valid source.  If you cannot count 
brownfield land or windfalls the implication is that most of this 5 year 
supply will be greenfield.  Will not this contradict the encouragement 
of development onto brownfield land?  The guidance on different 
densities in various locations is helpful but there are concerns that it 
should not be seen as prescriptive.  In some circumstances there is a 
need for lower density.  
 
e) There is a continued emphasis on housing delivery in settlements, 
but the need for other uses e.g. employment must not be forgotten.  

 
f) The suggestion of lowering the thresholds for affordable housing is 
welcomed as it will provide more scope to provide that housing in 
market towns where the need is greatest.  More developments will 
make contributions but there is a concern with the encouragement of 
development in unsustainable rural locations.  It is unlikely that 
allocating land solely for affordable housing in the market towns or 
anywhere else will bring forward that land. 

 
g) There is a need to have a stronger lever to make sure developers 
deliver higher quality design.  It would help if there was some clear 
guidance on measuring design quality and some evidence of the 
impact of quality design on housing costs.  Stronger 
guidance/legislation is needed but the ability to raise quality through 
PPS3 is limited by the principle in PPS1 that the planning system 
should not go beyond other legislation.  The promotion of design 
codes is welcomed but there is a resource and time implication. 

 
h) The commitment to sustainable dwellings is too weak but this could 
be strengthened by statute through building regulations. 

 
i) This section is of concern.  It suggests that planning applications for 
development could be approved in certain circumstances in advance 
of a review of a development plan.  It is not appropriate to have a plan 
led approach delivering sustainable communities with an opt out to 
release sites outside of the planning process. 
 
Questions 3 and 4 have not been answered. 

 
 
4. PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT PPS25: Development and 

Flood Risk 
 

4.1 This consultation document together with an accompanying Practice 
Guide should in due course replace PPG 25 on flood risk.  The PPS 
proposes a Risk Based Approach to flood risk.  Central to this 

62



approach is the sequential test.  This test requires that when either 
local authorities or developers wish to allocate land or develop land 
for housing or other uses in areas at risk from flooding they should 
demonstrate that there are no alternative sites available which have a 
lower risk of flooding.  If there are no reasonable alternatives 
available in the areas of lowest flood risk and the benefits of 
development outweigh the risk then other areas of flood risk can be 
considered.  The guidance also proposes to introduce an exceptions 
test which sets out four tests which, if all are satisfied, can allow 
departures from the sequential test.  The four tests are:- 

 
the development makes a positive contribution to sustainable 
communities 
the development is on developable brownfield land  
the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) demonstrates that the residual 
risks of flooding are acceptable and can be managed 
the development makes a positive contribution to reducing or 
managing flood risk 

 
4.2 The PPS seeks views on the introduction of a Flood Direction.  This 

direction would require that when a Local Authority is minded to 
approve a planning application to which the Environment Agency has 
a sustained objection on flood risk grounds, the application should be 
referred to the Government Office to decide whether the application 
should be called in by the Secretary of State.  

 
4.3 The PPS also proposes to extend the Environment Agencies role as 

a statutory consultee in relation to flood risk on certain developments.  
This would mean the Environment Agency would be consulted on 
non-householder development in flood zones 2 and 3, non-
householder development on areas identified as having critical 
drainage problems outside zones 2 and 3 and on any development 
exceeding 1 ha. 

 
4.4 The Statement also suggests that Local Authorities should consider 

whether the making of Article 4, Directions taking away permitted 
development rights to householders for extensions and alterations 
where such development is likely to have a direct and adverse affect 
on a flood risk area or its flood defences and their access, or 
permeability and management of surface water, or flood risk to 
occupants. 

 
5. COMMENTS ON PPS25 
 
5.1 These are based on the questions posed at the back of the document 
 

Question 1.  We consider positive planning has an important role 
to play in delivering policies which will avoid, reduce and 
manage flood risk.  We will provide a Practice Guide to help 
implement the planning policies set out in PPS25.  Will the new 
policy and the proposed Practice Guide as outlined in the 
consultation package secure planning strategies that direct new 
development to suitable locations taking flood risk and type of 
development into account?  If not, what alterations in approach 
do you suggest? 

 

63



• Agree that the risk-based approach set out in the PPS should ensure 
that development is directed to areas that have a lower risk of 
flooding.  The requirement to carry out Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessments will allow a more strategic approach to be taken in 
relation to flood risk and will give more certainty to developers when 
they are submitting planning applications. 

 
Question 2  The draft PPS25 sets out a ‘plan led’ approach to 
take flood risk into account in helping to deliver sustainable 
development.  We are proposing that flood risk should be taken 
into account at all levels of the planning process i.e. regional, 
local and at site specific levels.  Do you agree with this approach 
and the key planning objectives set out in para.5? 

 
• Agree with this approach and the objectives contained in paragraph 

5.  It is essential that the issue of flooding is fully taken into account at 
both the plan-making stages and the planning application stage as 
this will provide more certainty to residents, local businesses and 
developers. 

 
Question 3  We have set out in PPS25 the decision-making 
principles which regional planning bodies and local planning 
authorities should adhere to in relation to development and 
flood risk.  Are the principles clear and sufficient or should they 
be modified and if so, how? 
 

• Agree the principles are clear and sufficient. 
 
Question 4  It is suggested that flood risk assessments should 
be carried out at the regional, local and site-specific levels (see 
paras. 9-12 and Annex E).  Is the guidance clear on how the 
Regional Flood Risk Assessments (RFRAs) and Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessments (SFRAs) are used to inform Regional Spatial 
Strategies and Local Development Frameworks as a basis for 
preparing policies for flood risk management?  Is the 
relationship of RFRA and SFRA to Sustainability Appraisal also 
clear? 
 

• The PPS makes it clear that RFRAs should inform Regional Spatial 
Strategies and that SFRA should inform Local Development 
Frameworks in the preparation of flood risk management policies and 
in the allocation of land.  It is not clear how RFRAs and SFRAs 
should be used in relation to Sustainability Appraisal but it is 
proposed that this detail is provided in the accompanying Practice 
Guide.  
 
Question 5  An appropriate site-specific Flood Risk Assessment 
(FRA) is required to accompany planning applications for 
development in flood risk areas.  Are the criteria for determining 
the need for FRA correct?  If not, what should they be? 
 

• Agree the criteria for determining the need for FRA are correct. 
 
Question 6  The central part of the risk-based approach is the 
Sequential Test (see paras 13-15) and Annex D.  We have 
clarified this approach by amalgamating the PPG25 3a and 3b 
Flood Zones and making explicit the consideration of flood risk 

64



vulnerability.  Is this clear and do you agree with this approach.  
If not, what amendments do you propose that would serve 
better? 
 

• Agree with the approach set out in the Sequential Test, this will 
reduce the risk of potential damage which can be caused by flooding 
and will help direct development to areas with a lower risk of flooding.  
The approach clarifies the sequential test contained in PPG25 as it 
provides a clear connection between types of development and 
degrees of flood risk.  
 
Question 7  It is proposed to add a new Exceptions Test to 
complement the Sequential Test in Flood Zones 2 and 3 where 
development is necessary for wider sustainability reasons (see 
paras. 16-19 and Annex D).  Do you agree with this principle and 
the approach described or do you have an alternative proposal? 
 

• Agree with the principle of the Exceptions Test as this will allow 
development in locations which may be more sustainable in other 
terms but are in a higher risk flood zones.  The criteria set out ensure 
that this can only take place when the risks of flooding are acceptable 
and can be satisfactorily managed. 
 
Question 8  The responsibilities of key stakeholder are given in 
paras. 20-30 and Annex H.  Do you agree that the responsibilities 
are clearly stated or do you have amendments and alternatives 
to propose? 
 

• Agree with the responsibilities set out for Local Authorities provided 
the resource implications of the Flood Direction have been assessed. 
 
Question 9  We consider effective monitoring and review is 
essential to secure sustainable development of flood risk areas. 
Do you agree that the expected annual monitoring should 
include the HLT5 indicators listed in para. 32?  If not, what 
alternatives would serve better while being practicable and 
delivered at no extra cost? 
 

• Agree this indicator is appropriate to use as this data is already 
collected. 
 
Question 10  Do you consider the proposed scope of the 
Practice Guide (see section 3) covers all the relevant topics? 
 

• Agree the proposed Practice Guide covers all relevant topics. 
 
Question 11  Does the proposed scope of the Practice Guide 
include topics which do not need to be covered?  If so which 
topic and give reasons why? 
 
No 
 
Question 12  It is proposed to make a standing Flood Direction 
(see section 4) in respect of major development for which a 
planning authority proposes to grant permission, despite there 
being a sustained objection from the Environment Agency on 
flood risk grounds, after being re-consulted following an initial 

65



objection.  Do you agree with this proposal?  If not, have you 
any relevant alternative to this approach within the present 
ambit of the Planning Acts? 
 

• The resource implications for implementing this direction need to be 
assessed in detail.  The direction will require an increase in time 
spent by Local Authorities, the Environment Agency and the 
Government Office in determining applications and may be contrary 
to planning handling advice.  In Huntingdonshire in the period 
2004/05 two applications were approved contrary to Environment 
Agency advice. 
 
Question 13  As part of this consultation, we are proposing that 
the Environment Agency be made a statutory consultee under 
the Town and Country Planning Act Order (GDPO) 1995 on: 
i) non-householder development proposed in Flood Zones 2 and 
3; 
ii) non-householder development outside Flood Zones 2 and 3 
which are identified by the Environment Agency as having 
‘critical drainage problems’; and 
iii) any development exceeding 1 Ha. 
There is also a proposal to amend Article 10 (1) para. (p) of the 
GDPO (see section 5).  Do you agree with this approach? 
 

• The resource implications of this need to be fully assessed to ensure 
that the Environment Agency has additional capacity to cope with 
extra consultations. 
 
Question 14  The partial RIA sets out the likely benefits and 
costs of the draft PPS25.  Do you agree with the assumptions 
made?  If not, or if you think it is incomplete, please tell us why 
and provide any quantifiable evidence available to you on 
benefits and costs. 
 

• Agree that the RIA is complete. 
 
Question 15  Is the policy set out in PPS25 likely to effect small 
businesses?  If so, please tell us how, and if appropriate, how 
any disproportionate impact on small businesses could be 
eased while ensuring they, and neighbouring users of land, 
retain the benefit of protective planning policies on flood risk. 
 

• The requirement to provide Flood Risk Assessments may have a 
more significant effect on smaller firms than large businesses due to 
the cost involved but this is likely to be a smaller impact than the 
damage that could potentially be caused by flooding. 
 
Question 16  Planning Policy Guidance Note 25 contained a 
commitment to review after 3 years.  Do you think that PPS25 
should contain a similar commitment for review?  If ‘yes’, please 
give reasons why and include an appropriate review period. 
 

• The PPS should include a statement to monitor the effectiveness of 
the policy approach, if the policy approach fails or further information 
is received about climate change and flood risk then the PPS should 
be reviewed. 
 

66



6. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
                
6.1 That Cabinet note the contents of the report and:- a) endorse the 

responses in section 3 relating to PPS3 and b) endorse the 
responses in section 5 relating to PPS25 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) has published two consultation 
papers on Housing (PPS3) and Development and Flood Risk (PPS25) 
 
 
Contact Officer: Richard Probyn 
  01480 388430 
 

67



68

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  
CABINET                                                                      23RD FEBRUARY 2006 

DEVELOPMENT BRIEF 
OLD FIRE STATION / HOUSHOLD WASTE DISPOSAL SITE, ST NEOTS 

(Report by HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This Development Brief examines the redevelopment opportunities 

on land in and around the old Fire Station and Household Waste 
Disposal sites. It presents the planning policy context for the 
redevelopment of this area, which may involve the creation of a new 
Health Centre for this part of St Neots, together with improved car 
parking and pedestrian linkages.  

 
1.2 Cabinet is asked to consider the draft Development Brief and approve 

it for consultation purposes. Once representations have been 
considered and reported to Cabinet, it is intended to adopt the 
document as Interim Planning Guidance. 

 
2.            BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The old Fire Station site has been derelict for a number of years. It is 

adjacent to an attractive listed building at number 12 Huntingdon 
Street, and should be redeveloped.  

 
2.2 The Household Waste Disposal site has been in operation for a 

number of years in this town centre site. It is not an attractive use for 
such a town centre location and it blocks off people who park in the 
District Council car park behind Lidl supermarket, from walking the 
most direct route into town. 

 
2.3 The Cedar House surgery is adjacent and may move off site, as part 

of redevelopment opportunities associated with the former swimming 
pool land. As another option, it may stay on site, becoming larger and 
redeveloping into a more suitable building.  

 
2.4 The District Council is also keen to increase the number of car 

parking spaces within St Neots as outlined in the Market Town 
Strategy. The opportunity exists to extend the existing car park onto 
part of the Household Waste Disposal site and also onto part of the 
existing recreation ground.  

 
2.5 The Household Waste Disposal site was investigated by the District 

Council as a potential housing site as part of an Urban Capacity 
Study produced in January 2003.  

 
 
 
3.0 THE DEVELOPMENT BRIEF 
 
3.1 The purpose of this Development Brief is to ensure that all of these 

aspirations can be brought together to create a well planned and 

Agenda Item 14

69



appropriate development on site, something which contributes to 
improving the built environment of the town. 

 
3.2 Particularly important is redeveloping the old Fire Station site and 

relocating the Household Waste Disposal site to a more suitable 
location on the edge of the town. 

 
3.3 The Development Brief sets design parameters for the successful 

development of the site, ensuring that future proposals achieve 
imaginative and distinctive solutions. Indicative layouts are shown 
that illustrate what could be achieved, although the implementation of 
any individual element would be dependent on appropriate resources 
being identified.  

 
 
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Production of a Development Brief is best practice and will help to 

secure the most appropriate form of development over this site. If 
Cabinet approves the document, there will be a period of consultation 
with the local and statutory bodies. Any comments or changes will be 
brought back to Cabinet before it is adopted. 

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 That the Cabinet approves the Brief as a basis for further discussion 

and consultation before adoption as Interim Planning Guidance. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations June 2002 
Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPG Sept 2004 
Huntingdonshire Landscape & Townscape Assessment SPG Sept 2004 
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Mike Huntington 
  01480 388404 
 

70



 

EMPLOYMENT PANEL   8TH FEBRUARY 2006 
ELAG   8TH FEBRUARY 2006 
CABINET  23RD FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 

THE DISABILITY EQUALITY SCHEME 
(Report by Head of Policy) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 From December 2006 the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) 1995 

will be amended to place a duty on all public bodies to promote 
disability equality.  This will require the Council to actively promote 
disability equality, in the same way the Race Relations (Amendment) 
Act 2000 places a duty to promote race equality.  A similar duty for 
Gender Equality will be introduced in April 2007  

 
1.2 This is intended to bring about a shift in the legal framework which 

relies on individual disabled people complaining about discrimination 
to one in which the public services are required to actively promote 
change. 

 
1.3 Adopting the draft scheme now will allow time to carry out 

consultation in advance of the scheme becoming a statutory 
requirement; it will also allow integration with other equality work e.g. 
race assessments and equality impact assessments. 

 
2. OPERATION OF THE SCHEME 
 
2.1 The Act sets out a general duty, to have due regard to the need to 

eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote equal opportunities for 
disabled people.  The Council will also need to consider the 
elimination of harassment of disabled people, promotion of positive 
attitudes and the need to encourage the participation of disabled 
people in public life. 

 
2.2 The regulations also give Huntingdonshire District Council a specific 

duty which defines a framework to use to meet the general duty.  The 
main element of this is a requirement to produce a Disability Equality 
Scheme, in a similar way to the Race Equality Scheme. 

 
2.3 The process of producing a Disability Equality Scheme involves - 
 

♦ Involving disabled people in producing the scheme and 
developing the action plan. 

♦ Identifying how we will gather and analyse evidence to inform 
our actions. 

♦ Setting out how we will assess the impact of our existing and 
proposed activities on disabled people. 

♦ Producing an action plan for the next three years. 
♦ Reporting on our progress every year and review the scheme 

every three years. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15

71



 

3. ENFORCEMENT OF THE SCHEME 
 
3.1  The Disability Rights Commission (DRC) will have the power to issue 

compliance notices where it is satisfied that a public body has failed 
to comply with its specific duties.  Disability equality will also become 
part of the audit and inspection process.  User focus and diversity are 
very likely to feature strongly as key lines of enquiry in the next CPA. 

 
3.2 The Government and the DRC have produced a revised Code of 

Practice for this; a final version of this will be available during summer 
2006.  The Code does not impose legal obligations, nor is it an 
authoritative statement of the law – that is a matter for the courts and 
tribunals - it is, however, a “statutory” code and it is admissible as 
evidence in legal proceedings. 

 
3.3 The attached draft Disability Equality Scheme is similar in format and 

content to our current Race Equality Scheme and is compatible with 
the current draft Code of Practice on Disability Equality in the public 
sector. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1  The Cabinet is invited to endorse this scheme  
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Disability Equality Scheme 
 
 
Contact Officers: Louise Clewes, Policy Officer and 

Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy 
  01480 388032/388005 
 

72



Policy Division  

 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

DRAFT DISABILITY EQUALITY SCHEME 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) has been amended; it now 

places a duty on all public authorities to promote disability equality.  The DDA 

defines a disabled person as someone with ‘a physical or mental impairment, 

which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on his ability to carry out 

normal day-to-day activities’.  The Council recognises that disabilities can be 

wide ranging and will include sensory and mental impairment as well as 

mobility difficulties.   

 

We are committed to eliminating discrimination and harassment and 

promoting equality of opportunity between disabled persons and other 

persons.  In some instances giving due regard to disability equality may 

require additional, dedicated services to enable disabled people to access 

services on equitable terms.  This scheme describes how we intend to fulfil 

this positive commitment and to meet our duty. 

 

Functions and Policies 
 
We have identified our functions and formal policies and given them a priority 

depending on their relevance to disability equality.  We will use this review 

(appended) as a programme to assess all our functions over the next three 

years, as follows –  

 

Year Priority 
2006/07 1 

2007/08 2 

2008/09 3 

 

By functions we mean the full range of the Council’s activities and services 

provided in accordance with our duties and powers.  

 

By policies we mean formal and informal decisions, procedures, plans, 

strategies and objectives about how we carry out our duties and use our 

powers. 

 

73



Policy Division  

 

Strategic Aims for Disability Equality 
 
Our Corporate plan – Growing Success - recognises that: 

 

♦ Huntingdonshire is made up of many different communities; 

♦ some communities have greater or different needs than others; 

♦ equality doesn’t mean doing the same for everyone; 

♦ to make progress we must put more resources to meet the greatest 

needs; 

♦ we can’t afford to ignore communities with fewer needs; and 

♦ everyone needs to feel involved. 

 

Our Equality & Inclusion Strategy formalises our commitment to disability 

equality in providing high quality services and effective community leadership. 

We intend to do this, through –  

 

♦ planning and delivering services; 

♦ monitoring and evaluation; 

♦ consultation and engagement; 

♦ developing & supporting employees; 

♦ supporting our communities. 

 

Planning and delivering our services 
 
We will ensure that information about the Council and our services is available 

to all sections of our communities and that services are accessible to 

everyone.  To do this we will –  

 

♦ consider access to information and services when assessing and 

monitoring services; 

♦ make sure our staff have the necessary skills, information and 

understanding to provide services and information equally and fairly; 

♦ involve local communities in enhancing services and information they 

need and how they want them provided. 

74



Policy Division  

 

Monitoring and evaluation 
 
In a three year cycle we will make a detailed assessment of all our functions 

and policies, both formal and informal, to ensure that, where relevant, the way 

that we carry out those functions –  

 

♦ eliminates disability discrimination and harassment; 

♦ promotes equality of opportunity. 

 

Specifically, we will continue to examine each function and policy according to 

the priority given to it to identify whether there is evidence that people with a 

disability are affected differently.  To do this we will – 

 

♦ use disability monitoring to collect and analyse information about 

people’s disability to assess fair access to and use of services; 

♦ use national guidance and definitions to inform our assessments; 

♦ use historical data, including any available evidence, complaints or 

public concerns, survey and research findings, ethnic data and 

census results or general or specific research to assess the 

effectiveness of our services in promoting disability equality; 

♦ compare our policies and the way we carry out our functions with 

other local authorities and public bodies. 

 

We will monitor and analyse our policies and functions for any adverse impact 

on the promotion of disability equality.  We will use a range of methods to do 

this – 

 

♦ statistical analysis of disability data; 

♦ satisfaction surveys analysed by disability; 

♦ random or targeted surveys; 

♦ qualitative research. 

 

We will use the same disability classification system as that used in the 2001 

Census, except where research is targeted at specific communities where 

more detailed information might be required. 

 

We will incorporate consideration of the duty into review programmes, 

including service reviews and performance management systems.  

75



Policy Division  

 

 

We will use the results of assessment, consultation and monitoring to ensure 

we avoid or minimise adverse impacts on disability equality.  The information 

will be used to understand and meet the needs of different groups and to 

make new arrangements or change arrangements so that our policies and the 

way we carry out our functions promote disability equality.  Any new 

arrangements or changes we make will be relevant to the nature of the policy 

or function and its possible effect on the public. 

 
Consultation and engagement 
 
We will undertake clear, representative and proportionate consultation, using a 

range of appropriate methods.  Specifically we will try to engage disabled 

people to ensure that any new policy does not discriminate and promotes 

equality of opportunity for disabled people.  

 
Developing and supporting our employees 
 
To help us achieve our commitments and duty we will carry out monitoring of 

our employees throughout their employment cycle – from application to 

leaving.  This monitoring will enable us to measure the progress in promoting 

equality of opportunity and achieving a representative workforce.  

Specifically, we will –  

 

♦ collect disability monitoring data for existing employees, applicants 

for employment, for training, promotion, performance assessment, 

for staff involved in grievance or disciplinary procedures and for 

employees who leave; 

♦ analyse the data to look for any patterns of inequality; 

♦ take any reasonable action necessary to remove barriers or 

discrimination and to promote equality of opportunity; 

♦ publish the results of our monitoring each year. 

 

The disability monitoring of employees will be combined with the monitoring of 

other data in our information systems to build on current practices to promote 

equal opportunity.  

 

76



Policy Division  

 

The disability monitoring of employees will be reported annually to the 

Council’s Employment Panel. 

 

The Council has commissioned a training and development programme for its 

employees to promote an understanding of equality and its implications for 

meeting the Councils goals and objectives.  The programme will incorporate 

the requirements and benefits of meeting the duty and our commitment to 

promoting disability equality.  

 

Senior management and employees who will be directly responsible for this 

Scheme will receive additional specific training. 

 

The Council’s induction programme for new employees will include initial 

training on the importance of equality and specifically promoting disability 

equality to meeting the Council’s objectives. 

 
Supporting our Communities 
 
To ensure that we promote disability equality within our communities we will: 

 

♦ Support Council Members to represent and support communities and 

individuals. 

♦ Identify the needs of different communities. 

♦ Promote activity in community based organisations. 

♦ Identify socially excluded groups and develop measures to promote 

inclusion. 

♦ Ensure that community and welfare rights information is easily 

available. 

♦ Engage and support voluntary, community, charitable organisations 

and social enterprises. 

 
Publishing Results 
 
The results of our assessments, consultation and monitoring and reviews of 

this scheme will be made available in a way that is appropriate, accessible 

and proportionate.  

 

77



Policy Division  

 

A copy of the report compiled after each assessment will be available in full on 

our Website (www.huntsdc.gov.uk) or on request from the Policy Division, 

Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN 01480 388032. 

 

Where appropriate the Council will consider using or commissioning new 

methods of publication that are proportionate to achieving disability equality. 

 

Complaints 
Complaints about how we are meeting our duties or other complaints about 

disability equality will be dealt with through our established complaints 

procedure, which is available to all members of the public. 

78



 

   
 
 
CABINET 23 FEBRUARY 2006 
 
 

DELEGATED POWERS 
(Report by Head of Environmental Health Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The scheme of delegation which sets out the powers given to the 

Environmental Health Services Division in relation to enforcement of 
housing standards has been reviewed and revealed a number of 
additions that are necessary in order to enable the Division’s work to be 
carried out and reduce the chance of legal challenge. 

 
1.2 The purpose of this report seeks to make available all of the 

enforcement powers under the Housing Act 1985 and requests the 
approval of Members. 

 
2. THE HOUSING ACT 1985 
 
2.1 The Housing Act 1985 empowers officers to enforce housing standards 

in properties including houses in multiple occupation. 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is therefore RECOMMENDED that: 
 
(a) The Head of Environmental Health Services and the Director of 

Operational Services be authorised to appoint suitably qualified, 
experienced and trained officers to carry out these duties under 
the Housing Act 1985 and any Regulations or Orders made there 
under.   

 
(b) The Head of Environmental Health Services and the Director of 

Operational Services be authorised to institute legal proceedings 
after consultation with the relevant portfolio holder. 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Housing Act 1985 
 
 
Contact Officer: Sue Questier 
  01480 388286 
 

Agenda Item 16

79



80

This page is intentionally left blank


